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Scotts Holdings Limited

Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and the andited financial statements for the year ended
30 September 2006 The directors’ report has been prepared 1n accordance with the special
provisieps relating to small compames under section 246 (4) of the Compames Act 1985

Principal activities

The principal activity of the company 1s that of a holding company

Reéview of business

The p‘rofit and loss account for the year 1s set out on page 6

The directors expect that the present level of activity will be sustamed for the foreseeable future
Results and dividends

The loss for the year 15 £32,489,000 (2005 loss - £12,909,000) which has been transferred from
reserves No dividends have been paid n the year (2005 £ml) The directors do not
recommend a final dividend for the year ended 30 September 2006 (2005 £ml)

Directors and their interests

The directors who held office throughout the year, except as noted, and subsequently were as
follows

Mr E Claggett

Mr A van Winden  (resigned 30 September 2006) ‘
Mr J Wyatt (resigned 30 September 2006)

Mr N Rust {appointed 30 September 2006)

Mr M Breddy {appomted 30 September2006)

None of the directors held any interests in the shares of the company duning the year

There have been no significant events since the balance sheet date

Auditors

Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

t
e 5o far as the director 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the company’s
auditors are unaware, and

o the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to
make himselffherself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
company’s auditors are aware of that information

Thus confirmation 1s given and should be nterpreted n accordance wath the provisions of
s234ZA of the Compames Act 1985

Delorte & Touche LLP have expressed their willingness to continue 1n office as auditors and a
resolution to reappomnt them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

N
Mr N Rust

Director

2.5 July 2007




Scotts Holdings Limited

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements 1n
accordance wath applicable law and regulations

Company law requrres the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year
Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements 1 accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law) The financial statements are required by law to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that
penod In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to

* select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
s make judgements and estunates that are reasonable and prudent,
» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 18 inappropnate to
presume that the company wall continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose wath
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial pesition of the company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for
the system of internal control, for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other uregularities




Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Scotts Holdings Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Scotts Holdings Lirted for the year ended

30 September 2006 which comprise the profit and loss account, the reconcihation iIn movement 1n
shareholders’ deficit, the balance sheet and the related notes 1 to 12  These financial statements have
been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance wath section 235 of the
Compames Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we mught state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for thus report, or for the opimons
we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responstbilities for preparing the financial statements 1 accordance with applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)
are set out 1n the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audst the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opimuon as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are
properly prepared 1n accordance with the Compames Act 1985 We also report to you, whether n our
opinien, the information given in the directors' report 1s consistent wath the financial statements In
addition we report to you if, in our opinton, the company has not kept proper accounting records, 1f we
have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our andit, or if mformation
specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the directors’ report for the above period and consider the implications for our report 1f we
become aware of any apparent musstatements withun 1t

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our aucht in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK. and Ireland) 1ssued
by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examunation, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures m the financial statements It also mmcludes an assessment of the sigmficant
estimates and judgements made by the directors i the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropniate to the circumstances of the company, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or other wrregulanty or
error In forrming our opimon we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information
m the financial statements




Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Scotts Holdings Limited (continued)

Opinion
In our opinion

» the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the company's affairs as at 30 September 2006 and of
1ts loss for the year then ended,

» the financial statements have been properly prepared n accordance with the Compames Act 1985,
and

= the information given i the directors’ report 1s consistent wath the financial statements

deh G’\—M R

Deloitte & Touche LLLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

25*  Iuly 2007




Scotts Holdings Limited

Profit and loss account
Year ended 30 September 2006

Administrative expenses
Other operating mncome

Operating profit/(loss)

Amounts written off mvestment
Interest recervable and simular income
Interest payable and simular charges

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on loss on ordinary activities

Retained loss for the financial year

All results are derived from continuing operations

Notes

10

2006 2005
£7000 £7000
258 (1,273)
1,619 579
1,877 (694)
(31,758)  (10,000)
2,941 3,002
(5,549) (5,217
(32,489)  (12,909)
(32,489)  (12,909)

There are no recogmused gamns or losses i either year other than the profit for the year as shown above, therefore no

separate statement of total recogmised gans and losses has been presented




Scotts Holdings Limited

Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ deficit
Year ended 30 September 2006

Opening shareholders’ deficit
Loss for the year

Caputal contribution

Closing shareholders’ deficit

Note

2006 2005
£°000 £°000
(31,667)  (18,758)
(32,489)  (12,909)

25,000
(39,156) (31,667




Scotts Holdings Limited

Balance sheet

30 September 2006
2006 2005
Notes £°000 £000
Fixed assets
Investments 6 33,000 39,758
Current assets
Debtors 7 21,262 32,206
Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year 8 (93,418) (103,631)
Net current habilities (72,156) (71,425)
Net habilities (39,156) (31,667
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 9 - -
Capatal contribution 6 25,000 -
Profit and loss account 10 (64,156) (31,667
Equuty shareholders’ deficit (39,156) (31,667

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 July 2007
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

a1

Mr N Rust

Director




Scotts Holdings Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 30 September 2006

1. Accounting policies

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting
standards The particular accounting policies adopted are descnbed below and have been consistently applied
throughout the current and previous year

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention

Investments 1n subsidiary undertakings

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are recorded at cost less provision for impairment
Cash flow statement and related party disclosures

The company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company, a company registered in the
USA whose financial statements are publicly available Consequently the company 1s exempt under the terms
of Financial Reporting Standard No 1 {Revised) from publishing a cash flow statement The company has also
taken advantage of the exemption available under FRS 8§ ‘Related party disclosures’ not to disclose transactions
with other group entities, where more than 90% of the voting nghts are controlled within the group

Group accounts

At the end of the financial year was exempt from the obligation to prepare and deliver group accounts and has
taken advantage of S228A of the Companies Act, ‘Exemption for parent companies included in non-EEA

group accounts’ Details of the parent undertaking which draws up relevant group accounts are detailed in note
12

Forelgn currencies

Transactions 1n foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets
and habihities denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date  All foreign exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account in the peniod in which they
anse

Taxation

UK corporation tax payable 15 provided at amounts expected to be paid using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date

In accordance with FRS 19, deferred taxation 1s provided in full on timing differences that result 1n an
obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a nght to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected
to apply when they crystallise based on current tax rates and law Timung differences arise from the inclusion
of items of income and expenditure 1n taxation computations n periods different from those in which they are
included in the financial statements, deferred tax assets and habihities are not discounted

2 Information regarding employees
The company has no employees (2005 n1l) other than the directors

No director recerved emoluments for services to the company during the current or prior year




Scotts Holdings Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 30 September 2006

3. Operating profit/(loss)

2006 2005
£000 £'000
Is stated after (crediting)/charging
Expense re-charged to group companies (1,619) {584)
Auditors’ remuneration for
Audit 26 25
4. Interest payable and sirular charges
2006 2005
£°000 £°000
Bank loans and overdrafts 4,853 3,644
Loans from fellow group undertakings 696 1,573
5,549 5217

During the year the company entered nto two interest rate swaps These swaps mature on 15 November 2008
and 17 November 2008 respectively The fair value of these swaps and the notional value of the swaps at year
end 1s £267,932 (2005 £ml) and £14 4 nulhon (2005 £mil) respectively

5 Tax on loss on ordinary activities
No tax 1s payable by reference to the results for the year (2005 £ml)

The current tax charge for the penod differs from the standard rate of corporation tax i the UK of 30% The
differences are explained below

2006 2005
£000 £°000
Loss on ordinary activities before tax (32,489) (12,909)
Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of UK
corporation tax of 30% (2005 30%) 9,747 3,873
Effects of
Permanent differences (9,527) (3,002)
Losses carmed forward (219) (871)

Current tax for the year . .

There 15 approximately £4,431,000 (2005 £3,893,000) of taxable losses not recogmsed 1n the financial
statements as the directors regard their recoverability as msufficiently certamn




Scotts Holdings Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 30 September 2006

6. Fixed asset investments
2000 2005
£°000 £2000
Subsidiary undertakangs 33,000 39,758
£7000
Cost
At 1 October 2005 49,758
Capital contribution warver of mtercompany debt 25,000
At 30 September 2006 74,758
Provisions for impairment
At 1 October 2005 10,000
Written off dunng year 31,758
At 30 Septeraber 2006 41,758
Net book value
At 30 September 2006 33,000
At 30 September 2005 39,758

The impairment provision 1s against the carryng value of the mvestment in The Scotts Company (UK)
Lumted

11



Scotts Holdings Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 30 September 2006

6 Fixed asset investments (continued)

Interests in group undertakings

Country of
mcorporation or Description
Name of undertaking  registration Principal activity of shares
The Scotts Company England and Wales Production and Ordinary
(UK) Lirruted distribution of
gardeming
products

Levington Group Limited England and Wales Holding company  Ordmary

OM Scotts International England and Wales Holding company  Ordinary
Investments Limited

Scotts Deutschland GmbH Germany Dastribution of Ordmary
gardening
products
Scotts Intemational BV~ Netherlands Manufacture and ~ Ordmary
(formerly Scotts Europe distribution of
BV} gardening
products
Scotts Italia srl Italy Distribution of Ordmary
gardening
products
Corwen Home & Garden England and Wales Manufacture of Dormant
Lirmted (formerly garden fertilisers
Phostrogen Limuted)
The Scotts Company England and Wales Manufacture of Ordinary
{Manufacturing) garden care
Lumted products
Scotts Horticulture Ireland Distribution of Ordwary
Limted gardening products
Scott OM Espana SA Spam Distribution of Ordinary
gardening products
Scotts Profi Handels Austna Distribution of Ordinary
GmbH garderung products

The above compantes operate principally 1 their country of incorporation

Proportion of nomnal
value of 1ssued shares

Group
Y

100

100
100

100

100

95

100

100

100

100

100

held by
Company
Y

100
100

100

12



Scotts Holdings Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 30 September 2006

7 Debtors
2006 2005
£000 £'000
Amounts due by group undertakings 21,218 32,162
Other debtors 44 44
21,262 32,206
8. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2006 2005
£2000 £000
Bank loans 46,100 29,250
Loan notes - 116
Amounts due to group undertakings 46,934 73,229
Accruals 384 1,036
93,418 103,631
Bank loans consist of three short term loans amountmg‘ to £28,800,000, £6,000,000 and £11,300,000 The
mterest rates on the loans vary from 5 50 to 5 56%
Loan notes are repayable on demand and are secured with a letter of gnarantee from the Chase Manhattan Bank
and bear interest at a rate of 1% below LIBOR
9. Called up share capital
2006 2005
3 £
Authorised, called up, allotted and fully paid:
6 ordinary shares of £1 each 6 6
10.  Profit and loss account
£'000
At 1 October 2005 (31,667)
Retained loss for the year (32,489)
At 30 September 2006

(64,156)

13




Scotts Holdings Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 30 September 2006

11 Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemption available under Financial Reporting Standard No 8
"Related Party disclosures” not to disclose transactions with other group companies where these have been
eliminated on consohidation In additien, the company has taken advantage of a further exemption available
under FRS 8 not to disclose transactions with other group companies as the company 15 a 100% owned
subsidhary of The Scotts Company whose financial statements are publicly available

12 Ulamate holding company

The company 15 a subsidiary undertaking of The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company incorporated in the state of
Ohio The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company 1s considered by the directors to be the ulumate controlling party

The largest group 1n which the results of the company are consohidated 1s headed by The Scotts Miracle-Gro
Company The consolidated accounts of The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company are available to the public and may
be obtained from The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company, 14111 Scottslawn Road, Marysville, Ohio 43041 USA

The immediate parent company 1s Scotts Sierra Investments Inc , incorporated n the US, by virtue of us
interest 1n 100% of the equity of Scotts Holdings Limuted

14




These are the accounts of The Scotts
Miracle-Gro Company for the year ended
30 September 2006 which are submitted
for filing together with the individual
accounts of Scotts Holdings Limited
(Company No. 3473956) in accordance
with the requirements of section
228A(2)(f) of the Companies Act 1985,

THESE AoCUUNTS
i%—'ORh.#: PART OF THE
gﬁHOUP ACCOUNTS
i OF COMP,

ivo. /SLﬁ%q Séb
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Five-Year Summary(1)
For the fiscal year ended September 30,
(in millions, except per share amounts)

2006(2) 2005(3) 2004 2003 2002
OPERATING RESULTS(4)
Net sales $2,6971 $2,3693 $2,1065 $1,941 6 $1,7729
Gross profit 9559 850.4 792 4 7017 649 4
Income from operations 2525 2009 252 8 2316 238 4
Income from continuing operations
{net of tax} 1327 100 4 1005 103 2 1005
Net income 1327 100 6 100 9 103 8 825
Depreciation and amortization 670 67.2 577 522 435
FINANCIAL POSITION
Working capital 445 8 3016 3967 364 4 2783
Current ratio 19 1.6 19 18 16
Property, plant and equipment, net 3676 3370 3280 338 2 329 2
Total assets 2,217 6 2,018 9 2,0478 2,030 3 1,914 1
Total debt to total book capitalization 30 8% 27.7% 41 9% 51 0% 58 3%
Total debt 4812 3935 6306 757 6 829 4
Total shareholders” equity 1,081.7 1,026 2 874 6 728 2 5939
CASH FLOWS
Cash fRlows from operating activities 182 4 2267 214 2 2161 2389
Investments 1n property, plant and
equipment 570 40 4 351 518 570
Cash invested in acquisitions,
including seller note payments 1229 846 205 571 630
PER SHARE DATA
Basic eamings per common share $ 197 $ 151 $ 156 $ 168 $ 14
Diluted earmings per common share 191 147 152 162 130
Total cash dividends paid 335 86 - — -
Dividends per share(s) $ o050 $ o125 - — -
Stock prnice at year-end b4 49 4397 32 08 2735 20 85
Stock price range — High 50 47 4397 34 28 28 85 2518
Stock price range — Low 37 22 3095 2763 2177 17 23
OTHER
Adjusted EBITDA{6)} 3859 2915 3105 283 8 2819
Interest coverage (Adjusted
EBITDA/interest expense)(6) 97 70 64 4.1 37
Weighted average common shares
outstanding 675 66 8 647 618 58 &
Commaon shares and dilutive potenbal
common shares used in diluted EPS
calculation 69 4 686 666 6413 633

(1) All common share and per share infermation presented in the above five-year summary have been
adjusted to reflect the 2-for-1 stock split of the common shares which was distnbuted on Novem-
her 9, 2005 to shareholders of record on November 2, 2005.

(2) Fiscal 2006 includes Rod Mclellan Company, Gutwein & Co, Inc and certain brands and assets
acquired from Turf-Seed, Inc and Landmark Seed Company from the dates of acquisition See further
discussion of acquisitions 1n Note 5 to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this
Annual Report

20




(3) Fiscal 2005 includes Smith & Hawken® from the October 2, 2004 date of acquisition See further dis-
cussion of acquisitions 1n Note 5 to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this

Annual Report

(4) Operating results inctudes the following items segregated by accounts impacted on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations included with the Consolidated Financial Statements included n this

Annual Report

For the fiscal year ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Net sales includes the following relating to the
Roundup® Marketing Agreement
Net commission income (expense) $399 % (53 $285 $i76 $162
Reimbursements associated with the Marketing
Agreement 376 407 401 36.3 33.0
Deferred contribution charge {see
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and
Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included 1n this Annual Report) — (45.7) — — —
Cost of sales includes
Costs associated with the Roundup® Marketing
Agreement e e e e e e 37.6 407 401 36.3 330
Restructuring and other charqes (lncome) 01 (03) 06 91 17
Selling, general and administrative includes:
Restructuring and other charges. . 93 9.8 91 80 81
Impairment charges ~  ...... 66 4 23.4 — — -
Interest expense includes:
Costs related to refinancings .. ... — 13 45.5 - —
Net income includes
Cumulative effect of accounting for mtanglble
assets, netoftax . . . . ..., - - — — (18 5)

(5) The Company began paying a quarterly dw:dend of 12 5 cents per share in the fourth quarter of fiscal

2005

(6) Given our significant borrowings, we view our credit agreements as matenal to our ability to fund
operations, particularly in bght of our seasonality Reference should be made to “RISK FACTORS,” in
this Annual Report for a more complete discussion of risks associated with the Company’'s debt and
our credit factlity and related covenants. Our ability to generate cash flows sufficient to cover our
debt service costs 15 essential to our ability to maintain our borrowing capacity We believe that
Adjusted EBITDA provides additional information for determining our ability to meet debt service
requirements. The presentation of Adjusted EBITDA herein 1s intended to be consistent with the cal-
culation of that measure as required by our borrowing arrangements, and used to calculate a lever-
age ratio (maximum of 3 75 at September 30, 2006) and an interest coverage ratio (minimum of 3 50
for the year ended September 30, 2006) The Company’s leverage ratio was 1 75 at September 30,
2006 and our interest coverage ratio was ¢ 7 for the year ended September 30, 2006.

In accordance with the terms of our credit facility, Adjusted EBITDA Is defined as net income before
Interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, as well as certain other items such as the impact of
discontinued operations, the cumulative effect of changes 1n accounting, costs associated with debt
refinancings, and other non-recurnng, non-cash items effecting net income Adjusted EBITDA does
not represent and should not be considered as an alternative to net income or cash flow from opera-
tions as determined by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and Adjusted EBITDA does not necessarily indicate whether cash flow will be sufficient to meet cash
requirements Interest coverage is calculated as Adjusted EBITDA divided by interest expense exclud-

ing costs related to refinancings.
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A numeric reconciliation of net income to Adjusted EBITDA 1s as follows

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Net income . $1327 $1006 %1009 $1038 $ 825
Interest . .o 396 415 48 8 69 2 763
Income taxes . e e 802 577 58 0 59 2 616
Deprecation and amortization . 670 672 577 522 435
Loss on impairment . 66 4 23.4 — - -
Discontinued operations . s . — (0o 2) (0 4) {06) (o5)
Cumulative effect of change 1n accounting - — — - 1856
Costs relatad to refinancings . . ....... — 13 455 — —
Adjusted EBITDA . .. . $3859 $2915 $3105 $283.8 $2819

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Disclosure Items

This table is part of The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company 2006 Annual Report (the “Annual Report™) The
Annual Report includes financial charts and a letter from James Hagedorn, President, Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of the Board, to the shareholders of The Scotts Miracte-Gro Company. Some of the
charts and Mr Hagedorn’s letter include non-GAAP financial measures, as defined in SEC Regulation G,
of adjusted net income and adjusted diluted earnings per share which exclude costs or gains for discrete
projects or transactions, ltems excluded during the five-year perniod ended September 30, 2006 relate to
the closure, downsizing or divestiture of certain operations that are apart from and not indicative of the
results of operations of the business, costs incurred to refinance the long-term debt of the Company,
peat bog income, environmental charges, intangible asset impairment charges, and a deferred contnbu-
tion charge related to the Roundup® marketing agreement, in each case net of tax The comparable GAAP
measures are reported net income and reported diluted earnings per share A recenciliation of the GAAP
to the non-GAAP measures for the apphcable years follows

The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Disclosure Items for the Twelve
Months Ended September 30, 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(in millions, except per share data)

Twelve Months Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Net income (loss) . $132.7 $100.6 %1009 $1038 § 825
Restructuring and other charges. net of tax .. . 61 6.1 6.1 10 9 49
Debt refinancing charges, net of tax . .. - 0.8 283 - -
Impairment of intangibles, net of tax......... . 431 14.9 - — —
Deferred contribution charge, net of tax.. ........ - 290 — — -
Other charges, netoftax. ............ ........ - - — — 16 9
Adjusted net ncome . . ..... e e . $1819 $151.4 $1353 $1147 $104.3
Diluted eamings per share . .. e . $ 191 % 147 $ 152 $162 $130
Restructuning and other charges, net of tax . . . 0.09 0.09 009 017 co8
Debt refinancing charges, net of tax . - — 001 042 - -
Impairmenrt of intangibles, net oftax .. . ... 0.62 0.21 - - -
Deferred contribution charge, net oftax .  ..... - 043 - - -
Other charges, netoftax.  ............... — — — — 027

Adjusted diluted earnings per share ce e e $262 $ 221 $203 %179 % 165




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The purpose of this discussion 1s to provide an understanding of the Company’s financial results
and condition by focusing on changes in certain key measures from year to year Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 1s arganized in the following sections

¢ Executive summary

* Results of operations

Liquidity and capital resources

Cntical accounting polictes and estimates
* Management’s outlook

On November g, 2005, The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company distnbuted a 2-for-1 stock split of the
common shares to shareholders of record on November 2, 2005. To enhance comparability going
forward, afl share and per share information referred to in this MD&A and elsewhere 1n this Annual
Report have been adjusted to reflect this stock split for all penods presented

On December 12, 2006, The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company announced that 1ts Board of Directors
approved 1n concept a plan of recapitalization encompassing the following actions.

» New senior secured credit facilities aggregating $2.1 to $2 3 billion to replace the existing
$1.05 billion senior credit facility

» Repurchase of The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company's existing $200 million 6%% senior subordinated
notes

 Expanding and accelerating the previously announced program to repurchase $500 mitlion
common shares The revised program will be increased to $750 million, with approximately one-
third allocated to repurchase common shares and two-thirds toward a special one-time cash
dividend

The recapitalization 15 expected to be consummated dunng the second quarter of fiscal 2007 These
actions reflect management’s confidence in the continued growth of the Company coupled with strong
and consistent cash flows that can support higher levels of debt

Executive Summary

We are dedicated to delivering strong, consistent financiat results and outstanding shareholder
returns by providing consumers with products of superior quality and value to enhance their outdoor
living environments. We are a leading manufacturer and marketer of consumer branded products for
lawn and garden care and professional horticulture in North America and Europe We are Monsanto’s
exclusive agent for the marketing and distribution of consumer Roundup® non-selective herbtcide
products within the United States and other contractually specified countries We entered the North
America wild bird food category with the acquisition of Gutwein & Co., Inc {(“Gutwein”) in November
2005, and the outdoor living category with the acquisition of Smith & Hawken® in October 2004 We
have a presence m Australia, the Far East, Latin America and South America Also, in the United States,
we operate the second largest residential lawn service business, Scotts LawnService |n fiscal 2006, our
operations were divided into the following reportable segments: North America, Scotts LawnService®,
International, and Corporate & Other The Corporate & Other segment consists of the Smith & Hawken®
business and corporate general and administrative expenses
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As a leading consumer branded lawn and garden company, we focus our consumer marketing
efforts, including advertising and consumer research, on creating consumer demand to pull products
through the retail distnbution channels In the past three years, we have spent approximately 5% of our
net sales annually on media advertising to support and promote our products and brands We have
applied this consumer marketing focus for @ number of years, and we believe that we receive a
significant return on these marketing expenditures. We expect we will continue ta focus our marketing
efforts toward the consumer and make additional targeted investments tn consumer marketing expendi-
tures in the future to continue to dnve market share and sales growth A portion of our selling, general
and administrative cost savings from our long-term strategic improvement plan initiated in fiscal 2005
has been retnvested to strengthen our brands and relationships with consumers QOur spending on
advertising 1n fiscal 2006 ncreased 12.1% over fiscal 2005 and when combined with promations,
Increased 15,2%.

QOur sales are susceptible to global weather conditions For instance, perods of wet weather can
adversely impact sales of certain praducts, while increasing demand for other products We believe that
our past acqussitions have somewhat diversified both our product tine nsk and geographic nsk to
weather conditions.

Percent of Net Sales
by Quarter

2006 2005 2004

First Quarter 93% 104% 87%
Second Quarter 336% 34.3% 35.2%
Third Quarter 38.9% 38B0% 38:2%
Fourth Quarter 18.2% 173% 17.9%

Due to the nature of our lawn and garden business, significant portions of our shipments occur In
the second and third fiscal quarters In recent years, retailers have reduced their pre-season inventornies
placing greater reliance on us to deliver products “in season” when consumers seek to buy our
praducts

Management focuses on a vanety of key indicators and operating metncs to monitor the health and
performance of our business, These metrnics Include consumer purchases (point-of-sale data), market
share, net sales (including volume, pncing and foreign exchange), gross profit margins, income from
operations, net income and earnings per share. To the extent applicable, these measures are evaluated
with and without impairment, restructuning and other charges. We also focus on measures to optimize
cash flow and return on invested capital, including the management of working capital and capital
expenditures.

The long-term strategic improvement plan (“Project Excellence”), initiated in June 2005, 1s focused
on jmproving organizattonal effectiveness, implementing better business processes, reducing SG&A
expenses, and Increasing spending on consumer marketing and innovation. Net Project Excellence
savings are estimated to have increased fiscal 2006 pre-tax earnings by approximately $25.0 milllon We
incurred approximately $9 7 m|ll|on/|n restructurning charges associated with Project Excellence during
fiscal 2006 and approximately $36.0 milion since the inception of the project

Improving the performance of our consumer International business continues to be a challenge This
1s evidenced by the impairment charges for this business in the first quarter of fiscal 2005 and the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 Over the past several years, we have reorganized and rationalized our
European supply chain and increased sales force productivity Current efforts are focused on improving
our competitive position, continuing to reduce supply chain and SG&A costs within the business, and
realigning the organization to better leverage our knowledge of the marketplace and the consumer We
are working towards pan-European category management of our consumer product portfolio Overall, we
have moderated our goals for the consumer International business to reflect the realities of the
marketplace.
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We continue to view strategic acquisitions as a means to enhance our strong core businesses
Effective October 3, 2005, we acquired all the outstanding shares of Rod Mclellan Company (“RMC”) for
$20.5 million in cash plus assumed liabilities of $6 8 millieon RMC is a teading branded producer and
marketer of sail and landscape products in the western U S This business has been integrated into our
existing Growing Media business Effective November 18, 2005, we acquired Gutwein & Co, Inc
(“Gutwein”) for approximately $78 3 mition in cash plus assumed habilities of $4 7 million Through 1ts
Morning Song® brand, Guiwein 1s a leader in the growing North Amenca wild bird food category,
generating approximately $8o mullton in annual revenues Morming Song® products are sold at leading
mass retailers, grocery, pet and general merchandise stores This I1s our first acguisition in the wild bird
food category and we are excited about the opportunity to leverage the strengths of both organizations
to dnve continued growth in this category.

In late May and early June 2006, the Company Invested cash of $16 2 milion and assumed
$5.5 million of liabilities to consummate two acquisitions designed to strengthen the Company’s overalt
global position in the turfgrass seed category. First, the Company completed the acquisition of certain
assets, including brands, turfgrass vaneties and intellectual property, from Oregon based Turf-Seed, Inc
(*Turf-Seed”™), a leading producer of quahity commercial turfgrasses for the professional seed busmess
The transaction includes a 49% equity interest in Turf-Seed Europe, which distnibutes Turf-Seed’s grass
vaneties throughout the European Union and other countnes in the region. Based on future performance,
additional contingent consideration estimated at $15 o million may be due in 2012. Second, the
Company completed the acquisition of certain assets of Oregon based Landmark Seed Company, a
leading producer and distnbutor of quality professional seed and turfgrasses, including its brands,
turfgrass varieties and intellectual property

Given the Company's strong performance and consistent cash flows, our Board of Directors has
undertaken several actions over the past eighteen months to return cash to our shareholders. We began
paying a quarterly cash dividend of 12 5 cents per share in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 in fiscal
2006, our Board launched a five-year $500 million share repurchase program pursuant to which we have
repurchased 2.0 commeon shares for $87.9 million

Most recently, on December 12, 2006, we announced that we intend to implement a recapitalization
plan that would expand upon and accelerate returns to shareholders beyand the current $500 mitlion
program (which has been canceled) by returning $750 mullion to our shareholders Pursuant to this plan,
which has been approved in concept by our Board of Directors, we intend to launch a “Dutch auction”
tender offer in January 2007 to repurchase up to $250 million of our common shares Following the
censummation of the tender offer and subject to final Board approval, we intend to declare a special
one-time cash dividend during the second quarter of fiscal 2007, currently antictpated to be $500 million
in the aggregate but subject to revision based on spending for tendered common shares

In connection with this recapitalization plan, we have received a commitment letter from JPMorgan
Chase, Bank of Amenca and Citigroup, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, to provide
Scotts Miracie-Gro and certain of its subsidianes the following loan facilsties totaling in the aggregate up
to $2 1 bilion (a) a senior secured five-year term loan in the principal amount of $550.¢ million and
{b) a senior secured five-year revolving loan facibty in the aggregate pnncipal amount of up to
$1.55 billion The Company will have the ability to increase the aggregate amount of the revolving and
term loan facliies by $200 million allocated on a pro rata basis, subject to demand in the syndication
process The new $2 1 billion senior secured credit facilities would replace our existing $1.05 billion
senior credit facility In connection with the recapitalization plan, we also intend to use proceeds from
our new credit facilities to repurchase our 654% senior subardinated notes due 2013 In an aggregate
principal amount of $200 million

These actions reflect management’s confidence in the continued growth of the Company coupled
with strong and consistent cash flows that can support the higher levels of debt necessary to finance
this plan, as discussed n the Liquidity and Capital Resources section of this Annual Report. Even with
an increase 1n borrowings under the new credit facibiies, we believe we will maintain the capacity to
pursue targeted, strategic acquisitions that leverage our core competencies,




Results of Operations

The following tabie sets forth the components of income and expense as a percentage of net sales
for the three years ended September 30, 2006

2006 2005 2004

Net sales 100 0% 100 0% 100 0%
Cost of sates 64 6 637 62.4
Gross profit 354 36.3 376
Operating expenses

Selling, general and administrative 236 267 257

Impanment, restructuring and other charges 28 1.4 04

Other income, net (0.4) (o3) (0.5)
Income from operations 94 8¢5 12.0
Costs related to refinancings - 01 22
Interest expense 1.5 18 2.3
Income before income taxes 79 6.6 75
Income taxes 3.0 24 _28
Income from continuing operations 49 42 4.7
Income from discontinued operations — - —
Net income 4.9% 4.2% 4 7%
Net Sales

Consolidated net sales for fiscal 2006 Increased 13 8% to $2.70 billion from $2 37 bitlion in fiscat
2005 Acquisitions, foreign exchange rates and a Roundup® deferred contnbution Liability charge in fiscal
2005 significantly impacted the rate of sales growth in fiscal 2006, as detailed in the following table-

Net sales growth 13.8%
Acquisitions (5 0)
Impact of $45 7 millton charge n fiscal 2005 associated with deferred contribution
hiability under Roundup® marketing agreement (19
Foreign exchange rates 04
Adjusted net sales growth 7-3%

The adjusted net sales growth of 73% was driven by strong growth in our North American consumer
business and the Scatts LawnService® business, In contrast, the lawn and garden market has been
difficult in Europe as net sales are down 1.7% after adjusting for the effect of exchange rates North
America segment sales grew 14 8% to $1 91 billion, or 7 9% excluding acquisitions. Volume growth
contributed 5 8%, pncing 1.9%, with the balance due to the effects of foreign exchange rates Scotts
LawnService® net sales were $205 7 million in fiscal 2006, up 28.7% from fiscal 2005 Volume growth
drove approximately two-thirds of the increase with the balance from pricing and acqusitions
International segment sales declined 5.1% to $408 5 million In fiscal 2006, with one-third of the decline
due to volume and the balance due to a decline i average foreign exchange rates

In fiscal 2005, worldwide net sales totaled $2 37 billion, an increase of 12 5% compared to fiscal
2004 oOr 4.7% exctuding the impact of the Smith & Hawken® acquisition Positive impacts from foreign
exchanges rates contributed 1 2% to sales growth, while the impact of net selling prices added 1 9% to
sales growth.

Gross Profit

As a percentage of net sales, gross profit was 35 4% of net sales for fiscal 2006 compared to 36.3%
for fiscal 2005. Adjusting for the effect of the Roundup® contribution charge (see the following paragraph
and Note 3 to the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements), the fiscal 2005 gross profit rate
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was 375%, a decline of 210 basis points Acquisitions accounted for 70 basis ponts of the decline, as
the margins of these businesses are below our histornical average Product mix adversely affected
margins by 8o basis paints, due 1n part to significant increases In sales of tower margin grass seed and
garden soils Increased costs for fuel and commodities exceeded price increases, resulting in 9o basis
point dechine in gross margin as a percentage of net sales The offsetting 30 basis point differential Is
comprised of miscellaneous other items

Fiscal 2005 gross profit margins declined 130 basis points compared to fiscal 2004 The Roundup®
marketing agreement contribution charge of $45 7 milhion recorded in fiscal 2005 reduced gross margin
by approximately 9o basis points Smith & Hawken® gross margins, which were below the Company'’s
average, accounted for approximately 30 basis points of the decline From an operating segment
standpoint, North America gross margins increased 50 basis points, primarniy on a higher net Roundup®
commission, while pricing offset increased commeodity costs Scotts LawnService® gross margins
improved as frontline labor and supervisory productivity and fleet management improvements offset
higher fuel costs Gross margins declined in the International segment primarily due to higher commodity
and supply chain costs

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses (in millions)

2006 2005 2004

Advertising $1373 $1225 $105 0
Selling, general and adminustrative (SG&A) 468.7 486 6 419 6
Stock-based compensation 157 99 78
Amortization of intangibles 15 2 14 8 83
$636 9 $6338 $540.7

Advertising expenses In fiscal 2006 were $137 3 million, an Increase of $14 8 million or 12.1% from
fiscal 2005 On a percentage of net sales basis, the advertising expense was 5.1% In fiscal 2006
compared to 5 2% in fiscal 2005 Some planned increases in traditional media advertising were shifted
to consumer directed promotions funded via programs with our retail partners, which are accounted for
as a reduction to net sales The combination of higher advertising spending and consumer promotions
led to an 18% increase n spending for the North Amencan consumer business in fiscal 2005,
advertising expenses increased $17 5 mitlion from fiscal 2004 Excluding the impact of Smith & Hawken®,
advertising expense was 5 0% of net sales in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 Increases in media spending
in North America and Scotts LawnService® were offset by more focused International media spending.

In fiscal 2006, Selling, general and administrative expenses spending decreased $179 mitlion or
3 7% from fiscal 2005 This decrease reflects the savings generated by our Project Excellence initiative
coupled with a $10 1 million benefit from an Insurance recovery relating to past legal costs incurred In
our defense of lawsuits regarding our use of vermiculite Increases in SG&A spending occurred in our
rapidly expanding Scotts LawnService® business in the amount of %$16 6 million and our wild bird food
acquisition which added $4 2 million in spending.

SGRA expenses In fiscal 2005 were $486.6 million compared to $419 6 milion 1n fiscal 2004.
Excluding Smith & Hawken®, SG&A spending was $450 3 million, an increase of $30 7 million or 73%
This increase was primarily the result of outside legal fees assaciated with liigation matters, Sarbanes-
Oxley associated compliance costs, expansion of Scotts LawnService®, foreign exchange rates and
incremental North America selling expense (primarily for increased home center support), partially offset
by lower non-restructuring severance costs in North America and {nternational

We began expensing share-based awards commencing with grants 1ssued in fiscal 2003 The
majonty of our share-based awards vest over three years, with the associated expense generally
recognized ratably over the vesting penod. As such, fiscal 2005 was the first year to be impacted with
the expense associated with three years of grants Prior to the fiscal 2006 adoption of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” forfestures were recognized as
incurred, which reduced fiscal 2005 expense by approximately $2 2 mulhion Our stock-based compensa-
tion expense now includes an estimate of forfeitures starting at the grant date.

The $5 8 million ncrease In stock-based compensation in fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscat 2005
relates to two ttems First, there was an increase in the number of awards granted to key employees and
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the value of each grant has increased commensurate with our stock price Second, the departure of
several key executives n fiscal zoos resulted in a high level of forfertures, reducing the related share-
based awards expense in that fiscal year

Amortization expense was $15 2 million 1n fiscal 2006 compared to $14 8 million n fiscal 2005 The
increased amount of amartization 1s associated with recent acquisitions The $6 5 million increase n
fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004 primanly results from a comprehensive review of tntangibles and
corrections to the accumulated amortization of certain intangible assets Recent acquisitions also
contnbuted to this increase

Impairment, Restructuring and Other Charges, net {in millions)

2006 2005 2004
Impairment charges $66 4 $234 $ —
Restructuring — severance and related 93 263 g1
Litigation related income - (16 8} -
Other - 03 -
$757 $332 9.1

In accordance with SFAS No 142, “Goodw:ll and Other Intangible Assets”, goodwill and indefinite-
lived intangible assets are no longer amortized and are subject to impairment testing at least annually
or mote frequently if arcumstances indicate a potential impairment between annual testing We conduct
our annual assessment at the end of our first fiscal quarter. Qur assessment in the first quarter of fiscal
2006 resulted 1n an impairment charge of $1 o million associated with a tradename no longer in use Iin
our U K consumer business. Category declines in the European consumer markets dunng the 2006
season resulted in a declhine in the profitability of the consumer component of our International business
segment in fiscal 2006 After an evaluation, management reached the concluston that the projections
supporting first quarter 2006 impairment testing for the consumer component of our International
business segment were unlikely to be met Management engaged an independent valuation firm to
assist in an intenm impairment assessment of the indefinite-lived tradenames and goodwill associated
with this business As a result of this evaluation in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we recorded a
$65 4 million non-cash impairment charge, $62 3 million of which was associated with indefinite-lived
tradenames that continue to be employed 1n the consumer portion of our International segment The
balance of the fiscal 2006 fourth quarter impairment charge was in our North America segment and
consisted of $1 3 million for a Canadian tradename being phased out and $1 8 million related to
goodwill of a pottery business we exited

In the first quarter of fiscal 2005, we recorded an impairment charge of $22 o million associated
with indefinite-lived tradenames in the U.K. consumer business, reflecting a reduction in the value of the
business resulting primarly from the decline in the profitability of its growing media business and
unfavarable category mix trends

Restructuring activities in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 relate primanly to organizational reductions
assoclated with Project Excellence initiated in the third quarter of fiscal 2005 As a result of this
program, approximately 110 associates accepted early retirement or were severed duning the last four
months of fiscal 2005 Approximately 110 additional associates exited in fiscal 2006 We continue to
evaluate our organization and operating efficiencies As a result of these ongomg evaluations, there may
be further restructunng charges in future guarters

Litigation related income 15 attributable to two separate matters in fiscal 2005, In the fourth quarter
of fiscat 2001, as a result of collection concerns, we recorded a reserve against accounts receivable from
Central Garden & Pet Company {(Central Garden) This charge was recorded in impairment, restructurning
and other charges, net After nearly five years of pursuing collection of these recetvables via litigation,
we received payment totaling $15 o million on July 14, 2005 As a result, we reversed $79 million of the
Central Garden reserve recorded n fiscal 2001 In September 2005, we reached a settlement with sanofi-
aventis refated to our litigation of matters related to the Aventis business In relation to this matter, we
received a net $8 ¢ million settlement on September 30, 2005
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Other Income, net

Other income, net was $9 2 muillion for fiscal 2006 and was compnsed primanly of $6 8 million of
royaity income Other income, net for fiscal 2005 resulted primanly from $4 1 million awarded to us as
part of the Central Garden judgment discussed above and royalty income, partially offset by foreign
currency losses Other income, net in fiscal 2004 was attributable to royalty income, gains on foreign
currency transactions, Scatts LawnService® franchise fees and cast subsidies related to the sale of peat
bogs in the United Kingdom, for which a portion of the cost benefit was historically recorded as other
income (fiscal 2004 was the final year we receved such subsidies)

income from Operations

Income from operations In fiscal z006 was $252 5 million, compared to $200 9 million #n fiscal
2005, an Increase of $51 6 million Income from operations in fiscal 2006 was negatively impacted by
$66.4 million from impairment charges and an additional $9 4 million of restructuring charges Income
from operations in fiscal 2005 was negatively impacted by the following charges (1) $45 7 million related
to the Roundup® deferred contribution charge, (2) a $22.0 million charge for impairment of U K.
intangibles, and (3) $26 3 million n restructuring charges These were partially offset by $16 8 million of
litigation related income as discussed above. If these unusual factors were excluded from year-overyear
comparnson, fiscal 2006 would show an 18% improvement over fiscal 200s. Higher net sales and Project
Excelience savings, offset by a gross margin rate dechine and growth in advertising spending, were the
major contributors to the 18% growth in income from operations

Income from operations n fiscal 2005 declined $51.9 million from fiscal 2004 In addition to fiscal
2005 charges detailed in the preceding paragraph, the change in income from operations 15 attributable
to higher net sales and gross profit margins, and significantly higher earnings from the Roundup®
marketing agreement, partially offset by higher legal and Sarbanes-Oxtey compliance costs and sales
force investments in North America

interest Expense and Refinancing Activities

We have refinanced our debt arrangements several imes over the past two years to take advantage
of our improving financial posttion and favorable market conditions In Octaber 2003, we tendered nearly
2ll of our $400 millton then outstanding semor subordinated notes that bore interest at 8%4% and
ssued $200 mulion of new serior subordinated notes beanng interest at 654% At the time, we also
secured a new credit facility at more favorable terms than our previous arrangement Refinancing costs
associated with these transactions were $44 3 militon, including premiums patd on the redemption of
the 854% notes, write-off of previously deferred financing and treasury lock costs and transactions fees
In August 2004, we refinanced the term loan facility under a new credit agreement with new term loans,
providing for impraved terms and boarrowing costs. Costs charged associated with this refinancing were
$1.2 million

In July 2005, we entered into a new credit agreement that provided for a significantly increased
revolving credit facility and allowed us to repay our outstanding term notes, again prowiding for improved
terms and borrowing costs Costs charged against income from operations associated with this refinanc-
ing were $1 3 million

Interest expense decreased from $41.5 million in fiscal 2005 to $39 6 million in fiscal 2006 A
$3 6 million increase 1n expense due to an increase in rates on the vanable rate portion of our
outstandmg debt and an increase in average debt outstanding was more than offset by hedging
strategies, the wnpact of foretgn exchange rates, and miscellanegus othey items In fiscal 2005, interest
expense decreased $73 million compared to fiscal 2004 The decrease in Interest expense was primarily
attnibutable to a $113 9 milhign reduction in average borrowings, coupled with a mine basis point
reduction tn our weighted average interest rate to 5 83%.

{ncome Taxes

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2006 was 37.7% compared to 36 5% n fiscal 2005 and 36 6% in
fiscal 2004 The effective tax rate n fiscal 2006 was higher than in the prior two years due to fewer
favorable developments in fiscal zoos, our income tax rate benefited primanly as a result of favarabte
developments related to prior year foreign tax exposures. In fiscal 2004, our effective tax rate benefited
from an adjustment of state deferred income taxes resulting from a detatled review of state effective tax
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rates and ncreased utilization of foreign tax credits We anticipate the effective tax rate will be
approximately 37 0% for fiscal 2007

Net Income and Earnings per Share

We reported income from continuing operations of $132 7 million in fiscat 2006, compared to
$100 4 million in fiscal 2005 Income from discontinued operations pertains to the disposal of our
professional growing media business at the end of fiscal 2004 Reported net income, including income
from discontinued operations, increased from $100 6 million or $1 47 per difuted share n fiscal 2005 to
$132 7 million or $1 91 per diluted share n fiscal 2006 As descrnibed in the Income from Operations
discussion, the benefit from net sales growth and Project Excellence savings, was offset by impairment
and restructuring charges n fiscal 2006, while similar factors impacted fiscal zoos, along with the
Roundup® defemred contnbution charge Average diluted shares outstanding increased from 68.6 million
in fiscal 2005 to 69 4 million In fiscal 2006, due to option exercises and the impact on common stock
equivalents of a higher average share price, and partially offset by the repurchase of our common shares
under the program approved by our Board of Directors in November 2005,

In fiscal 2005, we reported income from continuing operations of $100 4 million, compared to
$100 5 million 1n fiscal 2004. Reported net income, including iIncome from discontinued operatians,
decreased from $100 9 milion or $1 52 per diluted share in fiscal 2004 to $100 6 million or $1 47 per
diluted share in fiscal 2005 As described in the Income from Operations discussion, the benefit from
solid sales growth in fiscal 2005 was offset by the significant Roundup® deferred contnbution charge,
and impairment and restructuring charges Average diluted shares outstanding increased from 66 6 mil-
lion 1n fiscal 2004 to 68 6 million In fiscal 2005, due to option exercises and the impact on common
stock equivalents of a higher average share price

Segment Results

Our operations are divided Into the following repartable segments North America, Scotts
LawnService?®, International, and Corporate & Other The Corporate & Other segment consists of Smith &
Hawken® and corporate general and adminsstrative expenses Segment performance is evaluated based
on several factors, including income from operations before amortization, and impairment, restructuring
and other charges, which 1s a non-GAAP financial measure Management uses this measure of operating
profit to gauge segment performance because we believe this measure 1s the most indicative of
performance trends and the overall earnings potential of each segment

Net Sales by Segment (in millions)

2006 2005 2004

North Amenca $ 19145 $1,668 1 $1,569.0
Scotts LawnService® 2057 156 8 135 2
International 408 g 4303 405 6
Corparate & other 167 6 159 6 —
Segment total 2,606 3 2,417.8 2,109.8
Roundup® deferred contribution charge - (457 —
Roundup® amortization o8 (2 8) B CE)

’ $ 2,697 1 $2,369 3 $2,106.5
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Income from Operations by Segment (in mitlions)

2006 2005 2004

North America $3820 $3429 $306 1
Scatts LawnService® 156 131 S 4
International 285 343 293
Corporate & other (818) (94 2) _Fo &
Segment total 1443 2671 2742
Roundup® deferred contribution charge - (457 -
Roundup® amortization 08 (2 8) 33)
Amortization (16 8) (14 8) (812
Impairment of intangibles (66 4) (23.4) -
Restructunng and other charges (o 4) (95) _ (8
$2525 $2009 $252.8

North America

North Amernica segment net sales were $1 91 billion 1n fiscal 2006, an increase of 14 8% from fiscal
2005. Excluding the impact of acquisitions, sales improved 7 9%, approximately 1 9% of which was a
result of pricing. Each of the core businesses performed well, with lawn fertthizers up 8% and growing
media up 17% Plant food grew 12%, benefiting from the very successful launch of Miracle-Gro®
LiquaFeed®, while grass seed grew 24% Ortho® sales were flat to last year due to a unfavorable season
for weed control products.

Dunng fiscal 2005, North America segment net sales increased 6 3% Of the increase in North
America net sales, approximately 2 3% was atinbutable to pricing. Within the North America segment,
Gardening Products net sales, which include growing media and garden fertilizers, increased g 8% with
higher sales of value-added Miracle-Gro® garden soils and potting mix, Shake 'N Feed® continuous
release plant food and Organic Choice® garden soils Net sales of Ortho® products increased by 11 0% In
fiscal 2005, driven largely by the successful launches of Home Defense MAX®, Weed-B-Gon® MAX®, and
Ortho® Season-Long Grass and Weed Killer concentrate Excluding the favorable impact of foreign
exchange rates, the Canacian group of North Amenca posted a 23 0% net sales increase In fiscal 2005
Unfavorable early season weather conditions adversely impacted the Lawns group within North America,
resulting In net sales that were flat compared to fiscal 2004

In fiscal 2006, North America segment operating income ncreased $38 1 million or 11.1% This
icreased operating iIncome was pnmanly the result of higher net sales and Project Excellence savings,
offsetting a gross margsn rate decline and growth im adverhising spending.

In fiscal 2005, North America segment operating income increased $37 8 million or 12.3% Higher
sales volume and gross profits, product price increases, strong performance m the Roundup?® business
and moderate increases n SGRA spending more than offset higher commodity and fuel costs,
Investments in the home center sales team, and in research and development projects

Scotts LawnService®

-

In fiscal 2006, we continued the expansion of our Scotts LawnService® business primanly through
tnternal growth We invested $4.4 mitlion of capital in lawn care acquisitions in fiscal 2006, and
$6.4 million In fiscal 2005 Acquisitions had been a major factor in the growth of the lawn care business
priof to fiscal 2004 While we expect to conbinue making selective acquisitions in future years, we
anticipate the magonty of the future growth 1in our lawn care business will be organic

Scotts LawnService® segment net sales increased $45 9 million or 28 7% 1n fiscal 2006 |n fiscal
2005, Scotts LawnService® net sales increased 18 2% or $24.6 million The growth in net sales for both
years has been from increased customer counts and revenue per customer, strong customer retention,
pricing to cover increased input costs, modest geographic expansion and the full year impact of recent
acquisitions
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Operating income for the Scotts LawnService® segment increased $2 5 million or 19 1% 0 fiscal
2006 and $3 7 million or 39 4% In fiscal 2005 These increases are the result of revenue growth offset
by investments in personnel and infrastructure to support future growth and service levels

International

Net sales for the International segment in fiscal 2006 declined by 5 1% or $21 8 million compared
to fiscal 2005 Excluding the effects of currency fluctuations, net sales declined 1 7% The retail
environment In Europe was challenging with category sales down in both the U K and France, our two
largest European markets. We believe listing improvements have resulted in market share gains,
however, these gains did nat result in top line growth due to the category declines

Fiscal 2005 International segment net sales increased $24 7 million or 6 1% compared to fiscal
2004 Excluding the effects of currency fluctuations, the fiscal 2005 net sales increase was 1 1%. Lower
sales in France and the Benelux countres largely offset higher sales in the International professional
business, Central Europe and the United Kingdom

In fiscal 2006, International operating income decreased $5 8 million or 16 9% as compared to
fiscal 2005. Lower sales and gross margins were partially offset by reduced SG&A spending, resulting in
the year-over-year decline. Operating income grew $5 o million or 17 1% n fiscal 2005, compared to
fiscal 2004. Excluding favorable foreign exchange rates, Internaticnat segment operating income
increased 8 5% The increase in fiscal 2005 eperating Income was attributable to modest revenue growth
and reduced SG&A spending, partially offset by lower gross margins

Corporate & Other

The loss from operations in Corporate & Other was $81 8 million in fiscal 2006, $94 2 mitlion in
fiscal 2005, and $70.6 million In fiscal 2004. The increase from fiscal 2004 to fiscal 2005 largely was
driven by increased legat and Sarbanes-Oxley compliance costs. While significant reductions in these
costs In fiscal 2006 served to reduce the toss as compared to fiscal 2005, a loss 1n our Smith &
Hawken® business mitigated the impact of these cost reductions.

Management’s Qutlook

We are very pleased with our performance in fiscal 2006 Despite upward pressure on commodity
raw matenal costs and a challenging retail environment in Europe, we delivered record net sales and
earnings Our sales results were drniven by strang point of sates growth in our North America business
and continued expanston of our Scotts LawnService® business, as well as recent acquisitions

Our strong results n fiscal 2006 have set the stage for another successful year in fiscal 2007 We
are committed to executing the strategic initiatives, all of which we believe will increase operating
profits, secure future growth opportunities and strengthen the Company’s franchise for our consumers,
our retail partners and our shareholders

From a financial perspective, the execution of our strategic plan will also allow us to continue to
improve Return on Invested Capital (ROIC) and free cash flows Our regular quarterly dividends coupled
with the specral stock repurchase and dividend planned for the second quarter of fiscal zooz, wilt allow
us to return funds to shareholders while maintaining our targeted capital structure and allowing for
opportunistic acquisitions.

For certain information concerning our nsk factors, see “RISK FACTORS” included elsewhere in this Annual Report

Liquidity and Capital Resaurces

Net cash provided from operating activities was $182 4 million for fiscal 2006, compared to
$226 7 mullion for fiscal 2005, a decline of $44 3 milion resulting from the following factors. First, we
undertook an inventory build in North Amenca in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 to take advantage of a
histoncal trough in urea costs and to ncrease the predictability of fiscal 2007 costs Second, Smith &
Hawken® inventories increased as a result of a conscious early season effort to improve customer
service, however, sales subsequently did not meet expectations. Third, $43 ¢ million of the Roundup®
deferred contnibution amount was paid in October 2005 Lastly, net payments against restructurning
reserves used $9 2 million in cash in fiscal 2006 while non-cash restructuring costs of $10 3 million
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served to Increase operating cash flows in fiscal 2005 These unfavorable cash flow developments were
offset by a $34 3 million Increase in accounts payable

The seasonal nature of our operations generally requires cash to fund significant increases in
working capital (pnmanly inventory) durning the first half of the year Recevables and payables also build
substantially in the second quarter of the year in ltne with the timing of sales as the spring selling
season begins These balances hquidate duning the june through September penod as the lawn and
garden season unwinds, Unlike our core retail business, Scotts LawnService® typically has its hughest
recevables balances in the fourth quarter because of the seasonal timing of customer applications and
extra services revenues

Cash used n investing activities was $174 1 million and $60 9 million for fiscal 2006 and fiscal
2005, respectively Qur acquisitions of Gutwein and RMC required a net cash outlay of $98 8 million in
the first quarter of 2006, which was financed with borrowings under cur extsting lines of credit Our
acquisition of Smith & Hawken® in the first quarter of fiscal 2005 required a cash outlay of $73 6 million,
financed n large part through the redemption of $57 2 million of investments. Capital spending of
$57 0 muithon in fiscal 2006 was done 1n the normal course of business, compared to the $40 4 million
spent In fiscal 2005 The increase in capital spending was partially due to approximately $4 g million
spent acquinng peat bogs in Scotland along with $5 4 million in new Smith and Hawken® stores

Financing activities used cash of $46 ¢ million and $195 2 mitlion 1n fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005,
respectively. As noted earlier, in fiscal 2006, we began a program to return cash to our shareholders To
that end, we paid dividends of $33.5 million and repurchased $87 9 million of our common shares
financed in part by a net increase in borrowings under our Revolving Credit Agreement of $55 2 million
Prior to fiscal 2006, our focus was on aggressively paying down debt and managing our credit
agreements and borrowings to maximize the benefit of our improving capital structure and debt facilities
Approximately $211.2 million of debt was retired in fiscal 2005 We also paid ous first ever common
share dividend 1n the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 totaling $8 6 million Proceeds from the exercise of
employee stock options were $17 6 million in fiscal 2006 compared to $32 2 million n fiscal 2005

Qur primary sources of hquidity are cash generated by operations and borrowings under our credit
agreements. Qur Revolving Credit Agreement consists of an aggregate $1.05 billion multi-currency
commitment (increased from $1 o billion in February 2006), that extends through July 21, 2010 Under
our current structure, we may request an additional $100 miltion in revolving credit commitments,
subject to approval from our lenders As of September 30, 2006, there was $775 9 million of avatlabitity
under the Revolving Credit Agreement As of September 30, 2006, we also had $200 o million of 6%4%
senior subordinated notes outstanding Note g to the Consolidated Financial Statements provides
additicnal information pertaining to our borrowing arrangements We were in compliance with ali of our
debt covenants throughout fiscal 2006

The recapitalization plan announced on December 12, 2006, to return $750 mtllion to shareholders
dunng the second quarter of fiscal 2007 will be financed by a restructuring of the Company’s principal
borrowing arrangements Qur Revolving Credit Agreement will be replaced with new senior secured $2 1
to $2 3 billion multicurrency credit facilities that will provide for revolving credit and term loans As part
of the refinancing, we intend to repurchase the $200 millien of 6%4% senior subordinated notes
outstanding We believe our new facilities will continue to provide the Company with the capacity to
pursue targeted, strategic acquisitions that leverage our core competencies

We are party to various pending judicial and administrative proceedings arising in the ordinary
course of business These snclude, among others, proceedings based on accidents or product liability
claims and alleged violations of environmental laws We have reviewed cur pending environmentat and
legal proceedings, including the probable outcomes, reasenably anticipated costs and expenses,
reviewed the avallability and Uimits of our insurance coverage and have established what we believe to
be appropniate reserves We do not believe that any Liabilities that may result from these proceedings
are reasonably likely to have a materal adverse effect on our liquidity, financial condition or results of
operations, however, there can be no assurance that future quarterly or annual operating resutts wiit not
be matenally affected by final resolution of these matters
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The following table summanzes our future cash outflows for contractual obligations as of Septem-
ber 30, 2006 (in mithions)

Payments Due by Perod

More than

Contractual Cash Obligations Total Less than 1 year 1-3years 45 years § years
Long-term debt obligations $ 4812 $ 60 $ 58 $255 0 $214 4
Operating lease obligations 190 3 349 56 O 361 633
Purchase obligations 419 3 2159 145 6 48.2 96
Other, pnmanly retirement plan

obligations 374 135 54 54 131
Total contractual cash obtigations $1,128 2 $270 3 $212 8 $3447 $300 4

Purchase obligations primanly represent outstanding purchase orders for matenals used in the
Company’'s manufacturing processes Purchase obligations also include commitments for warehouse
services, seed, and out-sourced infermation services which comprise the unconditional purchase
obligations disclosed in Note 15 to Consolidated Financial Statements

Other in¢ludes actuanally determined retiree benefit payments and pension funding to comply with
local funding requirements. Pension funding requirements beyond fiscal 2c07 are not currently determin-
able The above table excludes interest payments, and insurance accruals as the Company 1s unable to
estimate the timing of the payment for these stems.

The Company has no off-batance sheet financing arrangements

In our opinion, cash flows from operations and capital resources will be suffictent to meet debt
service and working capital needs during fiscal 2007, and thereafter for the foreseeable future However,
we cannot ensure that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or that future
borrowings will be available under our credit facilities 1n amounts sufficient te pay indebtedness or fund
other hguidity needs Actual results of operations wilt depend on numerous factors, many of which are
beyond our control.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to local, state, federal and foreign environmental protection laws and regulations
with respect to our business operations and believe we are operating in substantial compliance with, or
taking actions aimed at ensunng compliance with, such laws and regulations We are involved in several
legal actions with vanous governmental agencies related to envirenmental matters While 1t 1s difficult to
quantify the potential financial impact of actions involving environmental matters, particularly remedia-
tion costs at waste disposal sites and future capital expenditures for environmental control equipment,
in the opinion of management, the ultimate liability ansing from such environmental matters, taking into
account established reserves, should not have a material adverse effect on our financial position.
However, there can be no assurance that the resolution of these matters will not materally affect our
future quarterly or annual results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations 1s based upon the
Company's consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca (U S GAAP) Certain accounting policies
are particularly significant, including those related to revenue recognition, goodwilt and intangibles,
certain employee benefits, and income taxes. We believe these accounting policies, and others set forth
in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, should be reviewed as they are integral to
understanding our resuits of operations and financial position Our cntical accounting policies are
reviewed penodtcally with the Audit Committee of The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company Board of Directors

The preparation of financial statements requires management to use judgment and make estimates
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilittes, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of
contingent assets and habilities On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those
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related to customer programs and incentives, product returns, bad debts, inventories, intangible assets,
income taxes, restructunng, environmental matters, contingencies and litigation We base our estimates
on historical expenence and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances Although actual results histoncally have not deviated significantly from those determined
using our estimates, our results of operations or financial position could differ, perhaps matenally, from
these estimates under different assumptiens ar conditions

Revenue Recognition

Most of our revenue 15 derived from the sale of inventory, and we recognize revenue when title and
nsk of loss transfer, generally when products are received by the customer. Provisions for payment
discounts, product returns and allowances are recorded as a reduction of sales at the time revenue is
recognized based on histoncal trends and adjusted perodically as circumstances warrant. Similarly,
reserves for uncollectible receivables due from customers are established based on management's
judgment as to the ultimate collectibility of these balances We offer sales incentives through varous
programs, consisting prncipally of volume rebates, cooperative adverttsing, consumer coupons and
other trade programs The cost of these programs 1s recorded as a reduction of sales. The recognition of
revenues, receivables and trade programs requires the use of estimates While we believe these
estimates to be reasonable based on the then current facts and circumstances, there can be no
assurance that actual amounts realized will not differ matenally from estimated amounts recorded

Goodwill, Indefinite-lived Intangibles and Long-lived Assets

We have significant investments in property and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill.
Whenever changing conditions warrant, we review the realizability of the assets that may be affected. At
least annually, we review goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment The review for
impairment of long-tived assets, intangibles and goodwill is pnmanly based on our estimates of future
cash flows, which are based upon budgets and longer-range strategic plans. These budgets and plans
are used for internal purposes and are also the basis for communication with outside parties about
future business trends. While we believe the assumptions we use to estimate future cash flows are
reasonable, there can be no assurance that the expected future cash flows will be realized As a result,
impairment charges that possibly should have been recognized in earlier periods may not be recognized
until later perods If actual results deviate unfavorably from earlier estimates

Inventories

Inventanes are stated at the lower of cost or market, the majority of which are based on the first-n,
first-out method of accounting. Reserves for excess and obsolete mventory are based on a vanety of
factors, including product changes and improvements, changes in active ingredient availability and
regulatory acceptance, new product introductions and estimated future demand The adequacy of our
reserves could be maternally affected by changes in the demand for our products or regulatory actions.

Contingencies

As described more fully in Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, we are
involved n significant environmental and legai matters, which have a high degree of uncertainty
associated with them. We continually assess the likely outcomes of these matters and the adequacy of
amounts, If any, provided for their resolution. There can be no assurance that the ultimate outcomes will
not differ matenally from our assessment of them There can also be no assurance that all matters that
may be brought against us are known at any point in time.

Income Taxes

Our annual effective tax rate 1s established based on our income, statutory tax rates and the tax
impacts of items treated differently for tax purposes than for financial reporting purposes. We record
income tax liabilities utilizing known obligations and estimates of potential obligations A deferred tax
asset or liability 1s recognized whenever there are future tax effects from existing temporary differences
and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Valuation allowances are used to reduce deferred tax
assets to the balance that 1s more likely than not to be realized. We must make estimates and
judgments on future taxable income, considenng feasible tax planning strategies and taking into account
existing facts and circumstances, to determine the proper valuation allowance When we determine that
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deferred tax assets could be realized in greater or lesser amounts than recorded, the asset balance and
consolidated statement of operations refiect the change in the pernod such determination 1s made Due
to changes in facts and circumstances and the estimates and judgments that are involved 1n determining
the proper valuation allowance, differences between actual future events and prior estimates and
judgments could result tn adjustments to this valuation allowance We use an estimate of our annual
effective tax rate at each intenm peniod based on the facts and circumstances available at that time,
while the actual effective tax rate 1s calculated at year-end.

Associate Benefits

We sponsor various post-employment benefit plans. These include pension plans, both defined
contnbution plans and defined benefit plans, and other post-employment benefit (OPEB) plans, consist-
ing primanly of health care for retirees. For accounting purposes, the defined benefit pension and OPEB
plans are dependent on a variety of assumptions to estimate the projected and accumulated benefit
obligations determined by actuanal valuations. These assumptions include the following. discount rate,
expected salary increases, certain employee-related factors, such as turnover, retirement age and
mortality, expected return on plan assets, and health care cost trend rates These and other assumptions
affect the annual expense recognized for these plans.

Assumptions are reviewed annually for appropnateness and updated as necessary We base the
discount rate assumption on investment yields available at year-end on corporate long-term bonds rated
AA or the equivalent The salary growth assumption reflects our long-term actual expenence, the near-
term outlook and assumed inflation. The expected return on plan assets assumption reflects asset
allocation, investment strategy and the views of investment managers regarding the market Retirement
and mortality rates are based pnimanly on actual and expected plan experience The effects of actual
results differing from our assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future penods

Changes in the discount rate and investment returns can have a significant effect on the funded
status of our pension plans and shareholders’ equity. We cannot predict these discount rates or
ivestment returns with certainty and, therefore, cannot determtne whether adjustments to our share-
holders’ equity for mimimum pension hability in subsequent years will be significant

We also award stock options to directors and certain associates. Beginning in fiscal 2003, we began
expensing prospective grants of employee stock-based compensation awards 1n accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation™ The
fair value of future awards 1s being expensed ratably over the vesting penod, which has histoncally been
three years, except for grants to directors, which have shorter vesting periods. Stock options granted
prior to fiscal 2003 are accounted for under the intrinsic value recognition and measurement provisions
of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and
related interpretations. As those stock options were 1ssued with exercise prices equal to the market
value of the underlying common shares on the grant date, no compensation expense was recognized

RISK FACTORS
Cautionary Statement on Forward-Looking Statements

We have made and will make “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Secunities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 1n our 2006 Annual
Report on Form 10-K, in this Annual Report and In other contexts relating to future growth and
profitability targets and strategies de'S|gned to ncrease total shareholder value Forward-looking
statements also include, but are not imited to, information regarding our future economic and financial
condition, the plans and objectives of our management and our assumptions regarding our performance
and these plans and objectives.

The Private Secunties Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a “safe harbor” for forward-looking
statements to encourage companies to provide prospective information, sa long as those statements are
identified as forward-looking and are accompanied by meaningful cautionary statements identifying
important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those discussed in the forward-
looking statements. We desire to take advantage of the “safe harbor” provisions of that Act.

Some forward-looking statements that we make in our 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K, in this
Annual Report and in other contexts represent challenging goals for cur Company and the achievement of
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these goals 1s subject to a variety of nisks and assumptions and numerous factors beyond our control
Important factors that could cause actual resuts to differ matenially from the forward-looking statements
we make are described below All forward-looking statements attnibutable to us or persons working on
our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the following cautionary statements

Products

Perceptions that the products we produce and market are not safe could adversely affect us and
contribute to the risk we wilt be subjected to legal action We manufacture and market a number of
complex chemical products, such as fertilizers, growing media, herbicides and pesticides, beanng our
brand names. On occasion, allegations are made that some of our products have falled to perform up to
expectations or have caused damage or injury to individuals or property. Based on reports of contami-
nation at a third party supplier’s vermiculite mine, the public may percesve that some of our products
manufactured in the past using vermiculite are or may also be contaminated Public perception that our
products are not safe, whether justified or not, could impair our reputation, involve us in litigation,
damage our brand names and have a matenal adverse affect on our business

Weather and Seasonality

Weather conditions in North America and Europe can have a significant impact on the timing of
sales in the spring selling season and overall annual sales An abnormally wet and/or cold spring
throughout North Amenica or Europe could adversely affect both fertiizer and pesticide sales and,
therefore, our financial results. Because our products are used primarily in the spring and summer, our
business is highly seasonal. For the past three fiscal years, 70% to 75% of our annual net sales have
occurred 1n the second and third fiscal quarters combined Our working capital needs and borrowings
peak toward the end of our second fiscal quarter because we are incurnng expenditures (n preparation
for the spring selling season while the majonty of our revenue collections occur i our therd fiscal
quarter If cash on hand s insufficient to pay our obligations as they come due, including interest
payments or operating expenses, at a time when we are unable to draw on our credit facibity, this
seasonality could have a matena!l adverse effect on our ability to conduct our business Adverse weather
conditions could heighten this nsk

Competition

Each of our segments participates in markets that are highly competitive Many of our competitors
sell their products at prices lower than ours, and we compete pnmarly on the bass of product quality,
product performance, value, brand strength, supply chain competency and advertising Some of our
competitors have significant financial resources. The strong competition that we face in all of our
markets may prevent us from achieving our revenue goals, which may have a matena!l adverse affect on
our financial condition and results of operations.

Customer Concentration

In the North America segment, net sales represented approximately 70% of our worldwide net sales
in fiscal 2006 Our top three North American retail customers together accounted for 61% of our North
Amenca segment fiscal 2006 net sales and 42% of our outstanding accounts recewvable as of
September 30, 2006. Home Depot, Wal*Mart and Lowe’s represented approximately 30%, 16% and 15%,
respectively, of our fiscal 2006 North Amenca net sales The loss of, or reduction in orders from, Home
Depot, Wal*Mart, Lowe’s or any other significant customer could have a matenal adverse effect on our
business and our financial results, as could customer disputes regarding shipments, fees, merchandise
condition or related matters. Our inability to collect accounts receivable from any of these customers
could also have a material adverse affect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We do not have long-term sales agreements or other contractual assurances as to future sales to
any of our major retai! customers In addition, continued consolidation in the retail industry has resulted
In an increasingly concentrated retail base. To the extent such concentration continues to occur, our net
sales and ncome from operations may be increasingly sensitive to deternioration in the financial
condition of, or other adverse developments volving our relationship with, ane or more customers
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Significant Agreement

If we were to commit a serious default under the marketing agreement with Monsanto for consumer
Roundup® products, Monsanto may have the night to terminate the agreement If Monsanto was to
terminate the marketing agreement for cause, we would not be entitled to any termination fee, and we
would lose all, or a significant portion, of the significant source of earnings and overhead expense
absorption the marketing agreement provides Monsanto may also be able to terminate the marketing
agreement within a given region, including North America, without paying us a termination fee If sales to
consumers In that region decline (1) over a cumulative three fiscal year period, or (2) by more than 5%
for each of two consecutive years

Debt

We have a significant amount of debt that could adversely affect our financial health and prevent us
from fulfilling our obligattons Our debt levels will increase as a result of our ptan to retumn $750 million
to shareholders in the second quarter of fiscal 2007 Our substantial indebtedness could have important
consequences For example, it could

e make 1t more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations under outstanding indebtedness,
e increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions,

e require us to dedicate a substantial portion of cash flows from operating actwities to payments
on our indebtedness, which would reduce the cash flows available to fund working capstal,
capital expenditures, advertising, research and development efforts and other general corporate
requirements,

e limit our flexibility 1n planning for, or reacting to, changes tn our business and the industry in
which we operate,

* place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt;

o himit our abiity to borrow additional funds, and

e expose us to nsks inherent In interest rate fluctuations because some of our borrowings are at
vanable rates of interest, which could result in higher interest expense in the event of increases
In interest rates

Our ability to make payments and to refinance our indebtedness, to fund planned capital expendi-
tures, acquisitions, and to pay dividends will depend on our ability to generate cash i the future This,
to some extent, I1s subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other
factors that are beyond our control

We cannot provide assurance that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operating
activities or that future borrowings will be avaitable to us under our credit facitity in amounts sufficient
to enable us to pay our indebtedness or to fund our other iquidity needs We may need to refinance all
or a portion of our indebtedness, on or before maturity We cannot assure you that we would be able to
refinance any of our indebtedness on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

Our existing credit facility contains, and the new credit facilities will contain, restrictive covenants
and cross default provisions that require us to maintain specified financial ratios Our ability to satisfy
those financial ratios can be affected by events beyond our control, and we cannot be assured we will
satisfy those ratios. A breach of any of these financial ratio covenants or other covenants could result in
a default Upon the occurrence of an event of default, the lenders could elect to declare the applicable
outstanding indebtedness due immediately and payable and terminate all commitments to extend
further credit We cannot be sure that our lenders would waive a default or that we could pay the
indebtedness in full if it were accelerated.

Equity Ownership Concentration

Hagedorn Partnership, LP beneficially owned approximately 31% of our outstanding common shares
as of November 28, 2006, and has suffictent voting power to significantly influence the election of
directors and the approval of other actions requiring the approval of our shareholders
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Regulatory and Environmental

Local, state, federal and foreign laws and regulations relating to environmental matters affect us In
several ways In the United States, all products containing pesticides must be registered with the
U S EPA (and similar state agencies) before they can be sold The inability to obtain or the cancellation
of any such regtstration could have an adverse effect on our business, the seventy of which would
depend on the products involved, whether another product could be substituted and whether our
competitors were similarly affected We attempt to anticipate regulatory developments and maintain
registrations of, and access to, substitute active ingredients, but there can be no assurance that we will
continue to be able to avoid or minimize these risks

The Food Quality Protection Act, enacted by the U 5. Congress in August 1996, establishes a
standard for food-use pesticides, which standard 1s the reasonable certainty that no harm will result
from the cumulative effects of pesticide exposures Under this Act, the U.S EPA 15 evaluating the
cumulative nisks from dietary and non-dietary exposures to pesticides The pesticides in our products,
certain of which may be used on crops processed into various food products, are typically manufactured
by independent third parties and continue to be evaluated by the U.S. EPA as part of this exposure nsk
assessment The U S. EPA or the third party registrant may decide that a pesticide we use in our
products will be imited or made unavailable to us For example, in December 2000, the US EPA
reached agreement with vanous parties, including manufacturers of the active ingredient diazinon,
regarding a phased withdrawal from retailers by December 2004 of residential uses of products
containing diazinon, also used n our lawn and garden products. We cennot predict the outcome or the
seventy of the effect of their continuing evaluations

In addtion, the use of certain pesticide and fertilizer products 15 regulated by various local, state,
federal and foreign environmental and public health agencies. These regulations may include require-
ments that only certified or professional users apply the product or that certain products be used only
on certain types of locations, may require users to post notices on properties to which products have
been or will be applied, may require notification to individuals 1n the vicinity that products will be
applied in the future or may ban the use of certain ingredients Even If we are able to comply with alt
such regulations and obtain all necessary registrations, we cannot assure you that our products,
particularly pesticide praducts, will not cause injury to the environment or to people under all
circumstances. The costs of compliance, remediation or products hiability have adversely affected
operating results in the past and could matenally affect future quarterly or annual operating results.

The harvesting of peat for our growing media business has come under increasing regulatory and
environmental scrutiny In the United States, state regulations frequently require us to limit our
harvesting and to restore the property to an agreed-upon condition. 'n some locations, we have been
required to create water retention ponds to control the sediment content of discharged water In the
United Kingdom, our peat extraction efforts are also the subject of legislation

In addition to the regulations already descnbed, local, state, federal and foreign agencies regulate
the disposal, handling and storage of waste, air and water discharges from our facilities.

The adequacy of our curent environmental reserves and future prowisions is based on our operating
in substantial compliance with applicable environmental and public health laws and regulations and
several significant assumptions

e that we have 1dentified all of the significant sites that mus{ be remediated,
e that there are no significant conditions of potential contamination that are unknown te us, and

o that with respect to the agreed judicial consent order in Ohio, the potentially contaminated soil
can be remediated in place rather than having to be removed and only specific stream segments
will require remediation as opposed to the entire stream.

If there 1s a significant change in the facts and circumstances surrounding these assumptions or if
we are found not to be in substantial compliance with applicable environmental and public health laws
and regulations, it could have a materiat impact on future environmental capital expenditures and other
environmental expenses and our results of operations, financtal position and cash flows

39



European Economic Conditions and Foreign Currency Exposures

We currently operate manufactunng, sales and service facilities outside of North America, particu-
larly in the United Kingdom, Germany, France and the Netherlands. In fiscal 2006, International net sates
accounted for approximately 15% of our total net sales Accordingly, we are subject to nsks associated
with operations n foreign countries, including

» fluctuations in currency exchange rates;

= imitations on the remittance of dividends and other payments by foreign subsidiaries;
» additional costs of compliance with local regulations, and

* histoncally, In certain countries, higher rates of inflation than n the United States

In addition, our operations outside the United States are subject to the nisk of new and different
legal and regulatory requirements in local junsdictions, potential difficulties in staffing and managing
local operations and potentially adverse tax consequences. The costs related to our International
operattons could adversely affect our operations and financial results in the future

Restructuring Activities

In June 2005, we commenced a long-term strategic improvement plan, focused on tmproving organiza-
tional effectiveness, implementing better business processes and reducing selling, general and administrative
(“SGRA”) expenses. This reorganization places significant pressure on many SG&A functions to reduce
headcount and streamline actmities While management betieves these efforts will ultimately generate even
stronger financial results, there can be no assurance that the plan will achieve all of its expected savings.

Cost Pressures

Our ability to manage our cost structure can be adversely affected by movements in commodity and
other raw material prices, such as those expenenced in fiscal 2006. Market conditions may imit the
Company’s ability to raise selling prices to offset increases in our input costs The uniqueness of our
technologies can limit our ability to locate alternative supplies for certain products For certain materials,
new sources of supply may have to be qualified under regulatory standards, which can require additional
investment and delay bringing the product to market.

Manufacturing

We use a combination of intemal and outsourced facilities to manufacture our products. We are
subject to the inherent nsks 1n such actities, including product quality, safety, licensing requirements
and other regulatory 1ssues, environmental events, loss or impairment of key manufacturing sites,
disruptions 1n logistics, labor disputes and industnal accidents. Furthermore, we are subject to natural
disasters and other factors over which the Company has no control.

)

Acquisitions

Fram time to time we make strategic acquisitions, including the October 2004 acquisition of Smith &
Hawken®, the October 2005 acquisition of Rod McLellan Company (RMC), the November 2005 acquisition
of Gutwein (Mormning Song®), the May 2006 acquisition of certain assets of Turf-Seed, Inc. and the June
2006 acquisition of certain assets of the Landmark Seed Company Acquisitions have inherent rnsks,
such as obtaining necessary regulatory approvals, retaining key personnel, integration of the acquired
business, and achievement of planned synergies and projections. We have approximately $880 millson
of goodwill and intangible assets as of September 30, 2006, primanly related to prior acquisitions
Uncertainty regarding the future performance of the acquired businesses also results in the nsk of future
impairment charges related to the associated goodwill and intangible assets.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

As part of our ongoing business, we are exposed to certain market nsks, mcluding Ructuations in
interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices Financial derivative and cther
mstruments are used to manage these nsks. These instruments are not used for speculative purposes.

interest Rate Risk

The Company had varable rate debt instruments outstanding at September 30, 2006 and 2005 that
are impacted by changes in interest rates. As a means of managing our interest rate risk on these debt
mstruments, the Company enters into interest rate swap agreements to effectively convert certain
variable-rate debt obligations to fixed rates

At September 30, 2006, the Company had cutstanding interest rate swaps with major financial
mnstitutions that effectively converted a portion of our British pound (GBP) and Euro dollar denominated
variable-rate debt to a fixed rate The swaps agreements have a total U S. dollar equivalent notional
amount of $108 2 million with three-year terms expinng November 2008 Under the terms of these
swaps, we paid fixed rates of 2 g8% on Euro denominated swaps and 4.76% on GBP denominated
swaps. At September 30, 2005, we had no outstanding interest rate swaps

The following table summanzes mformation about our denvative financial instruments and debt
instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest rates as of September 30, 2006 and 2005 For debt
instruments, the table presents principal cash flows and related wetghted-average interest rates by
expected maturity dates For interest rate swaps, the table presents expected cash flows based on
notional amounts and weighted-average interest rates by contractual matunty dates Weighted-average
vanable rates are based on unplied forward rates in the yteld curve at September 30, 2006 and 2005. A
change in our vanable interest rate of 1% would have a $1 5 million impact on interest expense
assuming the $145.8 million of our vanable-rate debt that had not been hedged via an interest rate
swap at September 30, 2006 was outstanding for the entire fiscal year. The information 1s presented in
U S dollars (in millions)

Expected Matunty Date Far
2006 2008 2010 After Total Value
Long-term debt
Fixed rate debt $ — %2000 $2000 S$1940
Average rate — 6 625% 6.625% -
Vanable rate debt $2598 $ — $2538 $2538
Average rate 4 4% — 4 4% -
Interest rate derivatives.
Interest rate swaps based on Euro and GBP LIBOR $13 $ — % — % 13 % 13
Average rate 387% — — 3 87% —
Expected
Matunty Date Fair
2006 2010 After Total Value
Long-term debt
Fixed rate debt $ — %2000 %2000 $201%
Average rate - 6625% 6 625% -
Vanable rate debt $1662 $ — $1662 %1662
Average rate 352% - 352% -

Excluded from the information provided above are $27.4 million and $273 million at September 30,
2006 and 200s, respectively, of miscellaneous debt instruments
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The recapitalization plan announced on December 12, 2006, to retumn $750 million to shareholders
during the second quarter of fiscal 2007 will be financed by a restructunng of the Company’s principal
borrowing arrangements Our Revolving Credit Agreement will be replaced with new senior secured $2 1
to $2.3 bilion multicurrency credit facllities that will provide for revolving credit and term loans. As part
of the refinancing, we mtend to repurchase the $200 million principal amount of 6%% senior
subordinated notes outstanding

Other Market Risks

Our market nsk associated with foreign currency rates 1s not considered to be material. Through
fiscal 2006, we had only minor amounts of transactions that were denominated in currencies other than
the currency of the country of ongin. We are subject to market nsk from fluctuating market prices of
certain raw matenals, incleding urea and other chemicals and paper and plastic products. Our objectives
surrounding the procurement of these matenals are to ensure continuous supply and to mintmize costs
We seek to achieve these objectives through negotiation of contracts with favorable terms directly with
vendors. We have entered into arrangements to partially mitigate the effect of fluctuating fuel costs on
our Scotts LawnService® business and hedged a portion of our urea needs for fiscal 2007
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ANNUAL REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management 1s responsible for establishing and maintaining adeguate internal cantrol over financial
reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the retiability of our financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes In accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amenca. Internal control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (i) pertamn to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of The Scotts Miracle-Gro
Company and our consolidated subsidianes, (i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca, and that receipts and expenditures of The
Scotts Miracle-Gro Company and our consolidated subsidiaries are being made only in accordance with
authonzations of management and directors of The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company and our consolidated
subsidiaries, as appropnate; and (i) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthonzed acquisition, use or disposition of the assets of The Scotts Miracle-Gro
Company and our consolidated subsidianes that could have a matenal effect on the consolidated
financial statements.,

Management, with the participation of our principal executive officer and pnnaipal financial officer,
assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006, the
end of our fiscal year Management based its assessment on <ntera established n /nternal Control —
integrated Framework 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsorng Organizations of the Treadway Commis-
sion Management’s assessment included evaluation of such eleraents as the design and operating
effectiveness of key financial reporting controls, process documentation, accounting policies and our
overall control enviranment. This assessment 1s supported by testing and monstoring performed under
the direction of management.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements Also, projections of any evaluations of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or pracedures may deteriorate Accordingly, even an effective system of
intemal control over financial reporting will provide only reasonable assurance with respect to finanoial
statement preparation.

Based on our assessment, management has concluded that our internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of September 30, 2006, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external reporting
purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenica.
We reviewed the results of management’s assessment with the Audit Committee of The Scotts Miracle-
Gro Company

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, audited management’s
assessment and independently assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
Deloitte & Touche LLP has sssued an attestation report concurnng with management’s assessment, as
stated in their report which appears herein.

/s/ lames HagEDoRrn /s/ Davio C Evans

James Hagedorn Dawvid C Evans

President, Chief Executive Officer, Executive Vice President
and Chairman of the Board and Chief Financsat Officer

Dated: December 13, 2006 Dated December 13, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
Maryswille, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
and Subsidianes (the “Company”) as of September 30, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits The financial statements of the Company for
the year ended September 30, 2004 were audited by other auditors whose report, dated November 22,
2004, expressed an ungualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matenal misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements An audit also mcludes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as welt as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasanable basis for our optnton.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all matenal respects, the financial
position of the Company as of September 30, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended, In conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of September 30, 2006, based on the cniteria established n /nternal Control — Integrated
Framework 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated December 13, 2006 expressed an unqualtfted opinion on management's assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opimion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s intemnal control over financial reporting

/s/ Dewome & Toucke LLP

Columbus, Ohio
December 13, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
The Scotts Miracte-Gro Company
Marysvilie, Ohio

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Annual Report of
Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company and
Subsidianes (the “Company™) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of Sep
ber 30, 2006, based on cntera established w Internal Control — Integrated Framework 1ssued by the
Commuttee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commussion The Company’s management I'
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reparting Qur responsibility 15 to express an opni
on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal contro
over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obt:
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintaine
all matenal respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal contrel over financiz
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, 'and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
the circumstances We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions

A company’s internal control over financial reporting Is a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company’s principal executive and pnncipal financial officers, or persons performsr
similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personne
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of fin.
statements for extemnal purposes n accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnciples A
company’s intemnal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) per
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are rec
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting pninciples, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only 1n
accordance with authonizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) prowide reason
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthonzed acquisition, use, or disposition of
company’s assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent imitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management overnde of controls, matenal misstatements due t
error of fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis Also, projections of any evaluatn
the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
that the controls may become inadequate because of changes n conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company matntained effective internal cont
over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006 1s fairly stated, 1n ali maternial respects, based or
criteria established in Internal Control ~ Integrated Framework 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsor
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also, 1n our opinion, the Company masntained, 1n all m.
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006, based on the
critena established n internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsor
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year endec
September 30, 2006 of the Company and our report dated December 13, 2006 expressed an unque
opinion on those financial statements.

/s{ Dewome & Toucke LLP

Columbus, Ohio
December 13, 2006
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The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
Consolidated Statements of Operations
for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(in millions, except per share data)

2006 2005 2004
Net sales $2,6071 | $2,369.3 $2,1065
Cost of sales 1,741 1 1,509 2 1,313 5
Restructuring and other charges 01 (03) 06
Gross profit 955.9 860 4 792 4
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative 6369 633 8 5407
Impairment, restructunng and other charges 75.7 33.2 91
Other income, net (9 2) 75) (10.2)
Income from operations 2525 2009 252 8
Costs related to refinancings - 13 45.5
Interest expense 396 415 4B 8
income before mcome taxes 212 9 158 1 158 g5
Incame taxes 8o2 57.7 58 0
Income from continuing operations 1327 100 4 100.5
Income from discontinued operations — 02 0.4
Net income $ 1327 | § 1006 $ 1009
Basic earnings per common share:
income from continuing operations $ 197}t % 151 $ 155
Income from discontinued operations - - 0,01
Net income $ 1971 % 151 $ 156
Diluted earnings per common share.
Income from continuing operations $ 191 | % 147 % 151
Income from discontinued operations — — 0 01
Net income $ 1901 |$ 147 $ 152

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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{in millions)
2006 20¢
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $1327 1 % 100
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Impairment of intangible assets 66 4 23
Costs related to refinancings — 1
Stock-based compensation expense 157 10
Depreciation 510 49
Amortization 160 17
Deferred taxes (o4 (13
Gatn on sale of property, plant and equipment (o5s)
Changes in assets and Liabilities, net of acquired businesses
Accounts recervable (376) 7
Inventories (6o 6) (15
Prepaid and other current assets (36) g
Accounts payable 343 10
Accrued taxes and liabilities (33 4) 27
Restructuring reserves (92) 10
Other non-current items 20 6
Other, net g6 27
Net cash provided by operating activities 182 4 226
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in avallable for sale secunties —
Redemption of available for sale secunties - 57
Payments on seller notes —
Proceeds from sale of property, ptant and equipment 13
Investment tn property, plant and equipment (570) (40
Investments 1n acquired businesses, net of cash acquired (118 4} (77
Net cash used in investing activities (174 1) (60
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings under revolving and bank lines of credit 7469 924
Repayments under revolving and bank lines of credit 6917)| (736
Repayment of term loans — (399
Proceeds from i1ssuance of term loans —
Redemption of 8%4% Senior Subordinated Notes -
Proceeds from 1ssuance of 6%4% Senior Subordinated Notes -
Financing and 1ssuance fees — 3
Dividends paid (335) 8
Payments on sellers notes 45 6
Purchase of common shares 879
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements 62
Cash received from exercise of stock options 176 32
Proceeds from termination of interest rate swaps — 2
Net cash used in financing activities (46 9) {195
Effect of exchange rate changes 65 ®
Net decrease in cash (321) (35
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 8oz 115
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 481 | % 8o
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paid, net of interest capitalized (38 2) (39
income taxes paid {60 3} (64



The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
Consolidated Balance Sheets
September 30, 2006 and 2005

(in millions except per share data)

2006 2005
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 48a $ 802
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $11.3 1n 2006 and
$11.4 1n 2005 380 4 3233
Inventories, net 409.2 324 9
Prepaid and other assets 104.3 59.4
Total current assets 942.0 7878
Property, plant and equipment, net 367.6 3370
Goodwil| 458.1 432.9
Intangible assets, net 4247 439.5
Other assets 252 27
Total assets $2,217.6 $2.018.9
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS” EQUITY
Current habilities.
Current portion of debt $ 6o $ 111
Accounts payable 200 4 151.7
Accrued liabilities 269.1 314 7
Accrued taxes 207 87
Jotal current liabilities 496.2 486.2
Long-term debt 475.2 382.4
Other Liabilibes 164.5 124.1
Total liabilities 1,1 992.7
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 14, 15 and 16)
Shareholders’ equity:
Commeon shares and capital in excess of $.01 stated value
per share, shares 1ssued and cutstanding of 66.6 in 2006
and 678 1n 2005 509.1 491.3
Retained earnings 690.7 591.5
Treasury shares, at cost, 1.5 shares (66.5) —
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {51 6) (56.6)
Total shareholders’ equity . - 1,081.7 1,026.2
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $2,2176 $2,018.9

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
Consaolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004
{in millions)

Accumulated

Capital In Qther
_Common Stack  gxcess of Deferred  Retaned _1Feasury Stock  comprehensive
Shares Amount Stated Value Compensation Eamungs Shares Amount  Income/(loss) Total

Balance, September 30, 2003 641 %03 $398 4 $(63 $398 6 - - ${60 8) $ 7282
Net income 1009 100 9
Foreign cuirency translation (o9) 09
Unrecogmized gan on denvatives, net of fax 10 10
Minimum pension liability, net of tax 29 __ 29

Comprehensive income 1039
Stock-based compensation awarded 122 (122)
Stock-based compensation forfertures (12) 12
Stock-based compensatton expense 8¢ 89
Issuance of comman shares 16 _ 336 . 336
Balance, September 30, 2004 657 03 4430 (104 4995 - - (578 8746
Net income 1006 1006
Foreign currency translation 41 41
Unrecognized gain on dertvatives, net of tax 21 21
Minimum pension hability, net of tax o __ 59

Comprehensive income 101 8
Stock based compensation awarded 151 {151}
Stock based compensation forfeitures (2 6) 26
Stock based compensation expense 107 107
Cash dividends paid (12 5 cents per share} (8 6} 86
Issuance of common shares 21 _ __ 477 o 577
Balance, September 30, 200§ 678 013 503 2 (122) 5915 - - (56 6) 1,026 2
Net income 1327 1327
Foreign currency transtation (9 {19
FAS 123(R) reclassification (12 2) 122 -
Minimum penston liability, net of tax 65 65

Comprehensive income 1377
Stock-based compensation expense ' 157 157
Cash dividends paid (50 cents per share) (339) (335
Treasury stock purchases 20 (879) (875
Teeasury stock issuances 218 (o) 214 -
[ssuance of comman shares 03 235 —_ 235
Balance, September 30, 2006 681 %03 $508 8 $ - $6907 15 $(66s5) $(516) $1,0817
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The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company (*Scotts Miracle-Gro”) and its subsidianes (collectively, the “Com-
pany™) are engaged in the manufacture, marketing and sale of lawn and garden care products The
Company’s major customers include home improvement centers, mass merchandisers, warehouse clubs,
large hardware chains, independent hardware stores, nursenes, garden centers, food and drug stores,
commercial nursenes and greenhouses, and specialty crop growers The Company’s products are sold
primanty in North Amenca and the European Union We also operate the Scotts LawnService® business
which provides tawn and tree and shrub fertilization, insect control and other related services (n the
United States and Smith & Hawken®, a leading brand in the outdoor living and gardening lifestyle
category Effective November 18, 2005, the Company entered the North Amenca wild burd food category
with the acquisition of Gutwein & Co, Inc. (“Gutwein™),

Due to the nature of the lawn and garden business, the majorty of shipments to retatlers occur in
the Company's second and third fiscal quarters On a combined basis, net sales for the second and third
fiscal quarters generally represent 70% to 75% of annual net sales

Restructuring Merger

On March 18, 2005, The Scotts Company consummated the restructunng of its corporate structure
into a holding company structure by merging The Scotts Company into a newly-created, wholly-owned,
second-hier Omo himited hability company subsidiary, The Scotts Company LLC, pursuant to the
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 13, 2004, by and among The Scotts Company, The
Scotts Company LLC and Scotts Miracle-Gro {the “Restructunng Merger”} As a result of the Restructunng
Merger, each of The Scotts Company’s common shares, without par value, issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the consummation of the Restructunng Merger was automatrcally converted into
one fully paid and nonassessable common share, without par value, of Scotts Miracle-Gro. Scotts
Miracle-Gro 15 the public company successor to The Scotts Company Following the consummation of the
Restructuring Merger, The Scotts Company LLC is the successor to The Scotts Company and 15 a direct,
wholly-owned subsidiary of Scotts Miracle-Gro, the new parent holding company.

Organization and Basis of Presentation

The Company’s conschidated financial statements are presented 1n accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of Scotts Miracle-Gro and ail wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries All
intercampany transactions and accounts are ebminated in consolidation The Company's cnitena for
consolidating entrties 1s based on majonty ownership (as evidenced by a majority voting interest i the
entity) and an objective evaluation and determination of effective management control

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when title and nisk of loss transfer, which generally occurs when products are
received by the customer Provisions for estimated returns and allowances are recorded at the time
revenue IS recogruzed based on histoncal rates and are periodically adjusted for known changes in
return levels Shipping and handling costs are included in cost of sales. Scotts LawnService® revenues
are recognized at the time service 15 pravided to the customer.

Under the terms of the Amended and Restated Exclusive Agency and Marketing Agreement (the
“Marketing Agreement”) between the Company and Monsanto, the Company, in its rale as exclusive
agent performs certain functions, such as sales support, merchandising, distnbution and logestics, and
mcurs certain costs in support of the consumer Roundup® business. The actual costs incurred by the
Company on behalf of Roundup® are recovered from Monsanto through the terms of the Marketing
Agreement. The reimbursement of costs for which the Company 1s considered the prnimary obligator 15
included 1n net sales
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Promotional Aliowances

The Company promotes its branded products through cooperative advertising programs with retailers
Retailers also are offered in-store promotional allowances and rebates based on sales volumes Certain
products are promoted with direct consumer rebate programs and speaial purchasing incentives Promotion
costs (including allowances and rebates) incurred during the year are expensed to internm penods in
relation to revenues and are recorded as a reduction of net sales Accruals for expected payouts under the
programs are included in the “Accrued liabilittes™ line in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Advertising

The Company advertises its branded products through national and regional media Advertising
costs incurred durning the year are expensed to intenm periods in relation to revenues All advertising
costs, except for external production costs, are expensed within the fiscal year in which such costs are
incurred External production costs for advertising programs are deferred until the period in which the
advertising 15 first aired Advertising expenses were $137.3 million in fiscal 2006, $122 5 million in fiscal
2005 and $105 o mithon in fiscal 2004

Scotts LawnService® promotes Its service offerings pnmanly through direct mail campaigns. External
costs associated with these campaigns that qualify as diiect response advertising costs are deferred and
recognized as advertising expense In proportion to revenues over a period not beyond the end of the
subsequent calendar year. Costs that are not direct advertising costs are expensed within the fiscal year
incurred on a monthly basis in proportion of net sales. The costs deferred at September 30, 2006 and
2005 were $5 6 million and $2.4 million, respectively

Research and Development

All costs associated with research and development are charged to expense as incurred Expense
for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $35.1 million, $38.0 million and $34 4 mullion including registrations
of $8.2 million, $75 mitkon and $6 8 million, respectively.

Environmental Costs

The Company recognizes environmental llabilities when conditions requiring remediation are proba-
ble and the amounts can be reasonably estimated Expenditures which extend the life of the related
property or mitigate or prevent future environmental contamination are capitalized Environmental
liabilities are not discounted or reduced for possible recoveries from insurance carriers

Stock-Based Compensation Awards

In fiscal 2003, the Company began expensing prospective grants of employee stock-based compen-
sation awards In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No 123, “Account-
ing for Stock-Based Compensation.” The Company adopted SFAS 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”
effective October 1, 2005, following the modified prospective application approach The Company was
already in substantial compliance with SFAS 123(R) at the adoption date as SFAS 123(R) closely parallels
SFAS 123 The adoption of SFAS 123(R) did not have a significant effect on the Company's results of
operations for the period ended September 30, 2006. The fair value of awards 1s expensed ratably over
the vesting penod, generally three years, except for grants to members of the Board of Directors that
have a shorter vesting peniod

The Company changed its fair value option pricing model from the Black-Scholes model to a
binomsal model for all options granted on or after October 1, 2004 The fair vatue of options granted
prior to Octaber 1, 2004, was determined using the Black-Scholes model The Company believes the
binomial model considers characteristics of fair value option pricing that are not avallable under the
Black-Scholes model Both the Black-Scholes model and the binomial model take into account a number
of vanables such as volatility, nsk-free interest rate, contractual term of the option, the probability that
the option will be exercised prior to the end of its contractual life, and the probability of termination or
rettrement of the option holder in computing the vaiue of the option However, the binomiat model uses
a more refined approach 1n applying those vanables thereby improving the quality of the estimate of fair
value.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Earnings per Common Share

On November 9, 2005, the Company executed a 2-for-1 stock split to shareholders of record an
November 2, 2005 All share and per share information included in these consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto reflect this stock split for all penods presented

Basic earnings per common share 1s computed based on the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding each penod Diluted earnings per common share 1s computed based on the
weighted-average number of common shares and dilutive potential common shares (stock options,
restricted stock, performance shares and stock appreciation rights) outstanding each penod

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all hughly liguid financial instruments with onginal matunties of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company maintains cash deposits in banks which from time
to time exceed the amount of deposit insurance available. Management penodically assesses the
financial condition of the institutions and beheves that any potential credit loss 1s mimimal

Investments

At September 30, 2004, the Company held investments consisting of adjustable rate notes 1ssued
by a varety of borrowers (the “Notes™) The Notes were accounted for as “available for sale secunties”
In accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Secunties ™ The
Notes held at September 30, 2004, In the amount of $57 2 million, were redeemed on October 1, 2004.

Accounts Receivable and Allowances

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invorced amount and do not bear interest. Allowances
reflect our best estimate of amounts in our existing accounts recetvable that may not be collected due
to customer claims, the return of goods, or customer inability or unwillingness to pay We determine the
allowance based on customer nsk assessment and historical expenence We review our allowances
monthly Past due balances over go days and in excess of a specified amount are reviewed indwidually
for collectibtlity All other balances are reviewed on a pooled basis by type of receivable. Account
balances are charged off against the allowance when we feel it 15 probable the receivable will not be
recovered. We do not have any off-balance-sheet credit exposure related to our customers

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, principally determined by the FIFO method
Certain growing media inventories are accounted for by the LIFO method Approximately 5% and 6% of
inventories were valued at the lower of LIFO cost or market at September 30, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Inventories include the cost of raw matenals, labor and manufactunng overhead The
Company makes provisions for obsolete or slow-moving inventories as necessary to properly reflect
inventory at the lower of cost or market value Reserves for excess and obsolete inventonies were
$15 1 million and $16.3 mithon at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively

The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 151, “Inventery Costs,” in the first quarter of fiscal
2006 SFAS 151 amends ARB 43, Chapter 4, to clanfy that abnormal amounts of idle facility expense,
freight, handling costs, and wasted matenals (spoilage) should be recognized as current-peniod charges
In addition, SFAS 151 requires that allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion
be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities The Company has completed its evaluation
of the provisions of SFAS 151, and 1ts adoption did not have a matenal impact on its finanaial position
or results of operations
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Goodwill and Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets

In accordance with SFAS 142, goodwill and intangible assets determied to have indefinite live
not subject to amortization. Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairn
by applying a fair-value based test on an annual basis or more frequently If circumstances indicate
potential impairment. The Company conducts its annual impairment review of indefinite-lived trader
and goodwill during its first fiscal quarter If it 15 determuned that an impairment has occurred, an
impairment loss 1s recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds 1t
estimated fair value and classified as “Impairment, restructuring, and other charges” in the Consoli

Statement of Operations

Long-lived Assets

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost Expenditures for maintenance and repairs a
charged to expense as incurred. When properties are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost of t
asset and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts with the resuiting g
or loss being reflected In income from operations

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method and s |
on the esttmated useful economic lives of the assets as follows

Land improvements 10 — 25 yea
Buildings 10 — 40 yea
Machinery and equipment 3 — 15 yea
Furniture and fixtures 6 — 10 yea
Software 3-8 yea

Interest capitalized on capital projects amounted to $0.5 million and $o0 3 million duning fiscat
and fiscal 2005, respectively No interest was capitalized on capital projects (n fiscal 2004

Intangible assets with finite lives, and therefore subject to amortization, include technology
(e.g , patents), customer accounts, and certain tradenames These intangible assets are being amo
on the straight-ine method over periods typically ranging from 10 to 25 years. The Company’s fixec
assets and intangible assets subject to amortization are required to be tested for recoverability un
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, whenever events
changes n circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may not be recoverable

Internal Use Software

The Company accounts for the costs of internal use software in accordance with Statement of
Posttion 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for internal
Accordingly, costs are expensed or caprtalized depending on whether they are incurred 1n the prell
project stage, application development stage or the post-implementation/operation stage. As of S
ber 30, 2006 and 2005, the Company had $29.4 million and $37 4 million, respectively, in unamo
capitalized internal use computer software costs. Amortization of these costs was $10.7 million, $¢
lion and $8 7 million dunng fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively

Translation of Foreign Cusrencies

For all foreign operations, the functional currency 1s the local currency Assets and liabilities ¢
these operations are translated at the exchange rate in effect at each year-end income and exper
accounts are translated at the average rate of exchange prevailing duning the year Translation gai
losses anising from the use of differing exchange rates from period to penod are included i other
comprehensive income, a component of shareholders’ equity Foreign currency transaction gains
losses are included 1n the determination of net income and amounted to a loss of $0.5 million, a
$2.1 million and a loss of $o 7 million n fiscal years 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively
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Derivative Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company ts exposed to fluctuations in interest rates, the
value of foreign currencies, and the cost of commodities. A vanety of financial instruments, including
forward and swap contracts, are used to manage these exposures The Company’s objective in managing
these exposures s to better control these elements of cost and mitigate the earnings and cash flow
volatility associated with changes in the applicable rates and prnices

The Company has established policies and procedures that encompass nsk-management philosophy
and objectives, guidelines for denivative-instrument usage, counterparty credit approval, and the
monitaring and reparting of derivative activity The Company does not enter into dervative instruments
for the purpase of speculation

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management o make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported 1n the consolidated financial statements and accompanying disclosures. Atthough
these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events and actions the Company
may undertake in the future, actual results ultimately may differ from the estimates

New Accounting Pronouncements

Statement of Financlal Accounting Standards No. 157 — Fair Value Measurements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 1ssued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements” SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The Company will be required to adopt SFAS 157 no
later than QOctober 1, 2008, the beginning of its 2009 fiscal year The Company has not yet determined
the effect, If any, that the adoption of SFAS 157 wili have cn 1ts consolidated financial statements

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158 — Employers’ Accounting For Defined Benefit
Pension And Other Postretirement Plans

The Financial Accounting Standards Board has 1ssued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88,
106, and 132(R) ™ SFAS 108 will require the Company to recognize the underfunded status of its defined
benefit postretirement plans as a liability w its statement of financial position and to recognize changes
in that funded status in the year tn which the changes occur through comprehensive income SFAS 158
does not change the way the Company measures plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of
its balance sheet and in determining the amount of net penodic benefit cost

The Company will be required to adopt the provisions of SFAS 158 as of September 30, 2007, As
disclosed in Note 7, Retirement Plans, the Company’s projected benefit obhgation for its international
defined benefit plans exceeded the accumulated benefit obligation at September 30, 2006. As disclosed
in Note 8, Associate Medical Benefits, the Company’s accumulated plan benefit obligation for its post-
retirement medical plan exceeded the liability recorded at September 30, 2006 If the provisions of
SFAS 158 were adopted as of September 30, 2006, the Company would be required to record an
additional long-term liabiity of $26 3 million, an additional long-term deferred tax asset of $9 6 mitlion,
and charge the accumulated other comprehensive loss component of shareholders’ equity for
$16.7 million
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FIN 48 — Accounting For Uncertainty In Income Taxes — An Interpretation Of FASB Statement
No. 109

The Financial Accounting Standards Board has i1ssued Interpretation (FIN) 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty 1 Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 ” This Interpretation clanfies
the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recogmized in an enterpnse’s financial statements in
accordance with SFAS No 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes ” This Interpretation prescribes a recogni-
tion threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recogmtion and measurement of a
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return This Interpretation also provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and
transition

The evaluation of a tax position In accordance with this Interpretation 15 a two-step process. The
first step i1s recognition. The enterprise determines whether it 1s more-likely-than-not that a tax position
wilt be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes,
based on the technical ments of the position In evaluating whether a tax position has met the more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold, the enterpnse should presume that the position will be examined
by the approprnate taxing authonity that would have full knowledge of all relevant information. The
second step is measurement: A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold 15
measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial statements The tax position
1s measured at the largest amount of benefit that Is greater than 5o percent likely of being realized upon
ultimate settlement.

Tax positions that previously failled to meet the mare-likely-than-not recognition threshold should be
recognized in the first subsequent financial reporting penod in which that threshold 1s met Previously
recognized tax positions that no longer meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold should be
derecognized in the first subsequent financial reporting penoad 1n which that threshold 1s no longer met

The Company will be required to adopt the provisions of FIN 48 in respect of all the Company’s tax
positions as of October 1, 2007, the beginning of the 2008 fiscal year. The cumulative effect of applying
the provisions of the Interpretation wilt be reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings for the 2008 fiscal year. The Company has not completed its evaluation of FIN 48 and the effect
the adoptton of the Interpretation will have on the Company’s consolidated financial statements ftis
posstble that the adoption of this Interpretation will have a matenal effect on future results of
operations.

SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™) No. 108 — Quantifying Financial Statement
Misstatements

in September 2006, the Secunties and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
(“SAB”) No 108, “Quantifying Financial Statement Misstatements” Due to diversity in practice among
registrants, the SEC staff in SAB 108 expresses Its views regarding the process by which misstatements
in financial statements are evaluated for purposes of determining whether financial statement restate-
ment is necessary The Company will be required to adopt SAB 108 in fiscal 2007 The Company Is in the
process of evaluating SAB 108, but does not believe it will have a matenal impact on its financial
condtion, results of operations or liquidity
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NOTE 2. DETAIL OF CERTAIN FINANCIAL STATEMENT ACCOUNTS
September 30,

2006 2005
(In millions)
INVENTORIES, NET:
Finished goods $ 2674 $ 2160
Wark-1n-progress 360 314
Raw matenals 1058 775
$ 409 2 $ 3249
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET:
Land and improvements $ 498 $ 396
Buildings 144 6 131.1
Machinery and equipment 401.8 353.7
Furniture and fixtures 392 354
Software 79.7 76 6
Construction in progress 225 23.0
7376 659 4
Less' accumulated depreciation (370.0) (322.4)
$ 3676 $ 3370
ACCRUED LIABILITIES:
Payroll and other compensation accruals $ 537 $ 625
Advertising and promotional accruals 126.8 114 0
Restructunng accruals 6.4 15.6
Other _ 822 _ 1226
$ 269.1 $ 3147
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accrued pension and postretirement liabilities $ 938 $ 1029
Legal and environmental reserves 4.2 33
Deferred tax hability 49.2 45
Other 173 13 4
$ 1645 $ 1241

September 30,
2006 2005 2004

(in millions)
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPRE"IENSIVE LOSS:
Unrecognized gain (loss) on denvatives, net of tax of ${(o g),
$(12) and $0 2 $ 1.8 $ 18 % (03)
, Minimum pension liability, net of tax of $19.5, $23 7 and $227 (34.1) (406) (35.6)
Foreign currency translation adjustment _(193) _(78) _(219)

$(1.6) $(66) $(578)
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NOTE 3. MARKETING AGREEMENT

Under the terms of the Marketing Agreement with Monsanto, the Company is Monsanto’s exclusive
agent for the domestic and international marketing and distnbution of consumer Roundup® herbicide
products Under the terms of the Marketing Agreement, the Company 15 entitled to receive an annual
commission from Monsanto in consideration for the performance of the Company’'s duties as agent The
Marketing Agreement also requires the Company to make annual payments to Monsanto as a contribu-
tion against the overall expenses of the consumer Roundup® busmess.

The annual gross commission under the Marketing Agreement 1s calculated as a percentage of the
actual earmings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) of the consumer Roundup® business, as defined
in the Marketing Agreement. Each year's percentage vanes in accordance with the terms of the Marketing
Agreement based on the achievement of two earnings threshelds and on commission rates that vary by
threshold and program year,

The annual contnbution payment is defined 1n the Marketing Agreement as $20 million, however,
portions of the annual contnbution payments for the first three years of the Marketing Agreement were
deferred. Through July 2, 2005, the Company recognized a peniodic charge associated with the annual
contntbution payments equal to the required payment far that penod, The Company had not recognized a
charge for the portions of the contnbution payments that were deferred until the time those deferred
amounts were due under the terms of the Marketing Agreement Based on the then available facts and
circumstances, the Company censidered this method of accounting to be appropnate. Factors constdered
in this determination included the likely term of the Marketing Agreement, the Company’s ability to
terminate the Marketing Agreement without paying the deferred amounts, the Company’s assessment
that the Marketing Agreement could have been terminated at any balance sheet date without incurning
significant economic consequences as a result of such action and the fact that a significant portion of
the deferred amount could never have been paid, even If the Marketing Agreement was not terminated
prior to 2018, unless significant earnings targets were exceeded

Dunng the quarter ended July 2, 2005, the Company updated 1its assessment of the amounts
deferred and previously considered a contingent obligation under the Marketing Agreement Based on
the strong performance and other economic developments surrounding the consumer Roundup®
business, the Company concluded that it was probable that the deferred contribution payment that
totaled $45 7 million as of July 2, 2005 would be paid Since the recognition of this contingent obligation
was for previously deferred contnbution payments under the Marketing Agreement, the Company
recorded thts liability with a charge to net sales in the quarter ended July 2, 2005, This amount bore
interest at 8% until it was paid in October 2005 The deferred contnbution balance was recorded as a
cuirent habilty at September 30, 2005

Under the terms of the Marketing Agreement, the Company performs certain functions, primarily
manufactunng conversion, selling and marketing support, on behalf of Monsanto in the conduct of the
consumer Roundup® business The actual costs incurred for these activities are charged to and
reimbursed by Monsanto, for which the Company recognizes no gross profit or net income The Company
records costs incurred under the Marketing Agreement for which the Company i1s the primary obligor on a
gross basis, recognizing such c¢osts m “Cost of sales” and the reimbursement of these costs in “Net
sales,” with no effect on gross profit or net income The related net sales and cost of sales were
$37 6 million, $40 7 million and $40 1 miltion for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively The elements

1
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of the net commission earned under Marketing Agreement included in “Net sales” for each of the three
years In the penod ended September 30, 2006 are as follows

2006 2005 2004

Gross commission $607 %$670 $582
Contribution expenses (z00) {(238) (264
Deferred contnbution charge - {45.7) -
Amortization of marketing fee (0.8) (28) (33

Net commission income (expense) 399 (53) 28.5
Reimbursements associated with marketing agreement 376 407 40.1

Total net sales associated with marketing agreement $ 775 $354 $686

In consideration for the nghts granted to the Company under the Marketing Agreement for North
Amenca, the Company was required to pay a marketing fee of $33 mition to Monsanto. The Company
has deferred this amount on the basis that the payment will provide a future benefit through
commissions that will be eamed under the Marketing Agreement. Based on management’'s current
assessment of the likely term of the Marketing Agreement, the useful life over which the marketing fee 1s
being amortized 1s 20 years. Prior to fiscal 2005, the marketing fee had been amortized over ten years.

The Marketing Agreement has no definite term except as it relates to the European Umion countnes.
With respect to the European Unton countries, the term of the Marketing Agreement has been extended
through September 30, 2008 and may be renewed at the option of both parties for two additional
successive terms ending on September 30, 2015 and 2018, with a separate determination being made
by the parties at least six months prior to the expiration of each such term as to whether to commence
a subsequent renewal term. If Monsanto does not agree to the renewal term with respect to the
European Union countries, the commission structure will be renegotiated within the terms of the
Marketing Agreement, For countries outside of the European Union, the Marketing Agreement continues
indefinitely unless terminated by either party The Marketing Agreement provides Monsanto with the night
to terminate the Marketing Agreement for an event of default (as defined in the Marketing Agreement) by
the Company or a change 1n control of Monsanto or the sale of the consumer Roundup® business The
Marketing Agreement provides the Company with the night to terminate the Marketing Agreement in
certain circumstances including an event of default by Monsanto or the sale of the consumer Roundup?®
business Uniess Monsanto terminates the Marketing Agreement for an event of default by the Company,
Monsanto I1s required to pay a termination fee to the Company that vanes by program year If Monsanto
terminates the Marketing Agreement upon a change of control of Monsanto or the sale of the consumer
Roundup® business prior to September 30, 2008, we will be entitled to a terminatton fee in excess of
$100 million If we terminate the Marketing Agreement upon an uncured matenal breach, matenal fraud
or matenal willful misconduct by Monsanto, we will be entitled to receive a termination fee in excess of
$100 million f the termination occurs prior to September 30, 2008, The termination fee declines over
time from $100 million to a mimmum of $16 millon for terminations between September 30, 2008 and
September 30, 2018 If Monsanto was to terminate the Marketing Agreement for cause, we would not be
entitled to any termination fee, and we would lose all, or a significant portion, of the significant source
of earnings and overhead expense absorption the Marketing Agreement provides Monsanto may also be
able to terminate the Marketing Agreement within a given region, including Nerth Amenca, without
paying us a termination fee If sales to consumers in that region decline (1) over a cumulative three
fiscal year perod, or (2) by more than 5% for each of two consecutive years

NOTE 4. IMPAIRMENT, RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CHARGES
2006 Charges

An impairment charge of $1 0 million was recorded in the first quarter related to a tradename no
longer in use In the UK consumer business As further discussed in Note 6, an impairment charge of
$65.4 million pnmarily related to indefinite-lived tradenames 1n our European consumer business was
recorded In the fourth quarter as a result of the intenim date impairment analysis of indefinite-lived
intangibles and goodwill Dunng fiscal 2006, the Company recorded $9 4 million of restructuring and
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other charges relating to the strategic improvement plan initiated in fiscal 2005, consisting primanly of
severance and related costs

2005 Charges

During fiscal 2005, the Company recorded $9.5 million of restructuring and other charges The
Company recognized restructunng costs relating prnmanly to the Company’s strategic improvement plan
designed to significantly improve long-term earnings through a sustained effort to reduce general and
administrative costs Pnimarly in relation to the plan, the Company recognized $26.3 million of severance
and related costs, including curtailment charges relating to a pension plan and the retiree medical plan.
The Company anticipates that restructunng activities under the strategic improvement plan will continue
through fiscal 2007 and that total costs under the plan will be in the range of $33 million to $35 million.
In the first quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $22.0 million for
indefinite-lived tradenames n our U.K. consumer business, reflecting a reduction in the value of the
business resulting pnmanly from the decline in the profitability of its growing media business and
unfavorable category mix trends

Offsetting these charges was a reserve reversal to restructuring income of $7 9 million related to the
collection of outstanding accounts recewvable due from Central Garden & Pet Company (Central Garden),
and a net settlement gain of $8 9 million was recorded relating to the lawsuit against Aventis

2004 Charges

Durning fiscal 2004, the Company recorded $9 7 million of restructuning and other charges. Charges
related to our North America distribution restructuring were classified as cost of sales in the amount of
$0 6 million Severance costs related to our International Profit Improvement Plan and the restructuring
of our International team amounted to $6 1 millon The restructuring of our Global Business Information
Services group amounted to $3 o million and related pnmanly to severance and outside service costs
The severance costs incurred in fiscal 2004 are related to the reduction of 75 admmistrative and
production employees.

The following is the detail of impaiment, restructunng, and other charges and a rollforward of the
cash portion of the restructuring and other charges accrued in fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004 (n millions)

2006 2005 2004

Restructunng:

Severance $ 85 $159 %76
Facility exit costs — 01 10
Central Garden litigation - 79 —
Aventis htigation — {8 9) —
Curtailment of pension and retiree medical plans — 49 -
Other related costs 09 5 4 11

94 95 97

Asset impairment

Other intangibles 66 4 23 4 —_
Total restructuning and asset impairment expense $758 $329 597
Amounts reserved for restructuring and other charges at beginning of year $156 %53 %45

Restructunng expense 94 95 97

Recelpts, payments and other _(186) 08 (8.9
Amounts reserved for restructunng and other charges at end of year $ 64 $156 $53

The restructuning activities to which these costs apply are expected to be largely completed in fiscal
2007 The balance of the accrued charges at September 30, 2006 and 2005, are included in “Accrued
Liabilities” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
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NOTE 5. ACQUISITIONS

The Company continues to view strategic acquisitions as a means to enhance our strong core
businesses The following recaps key acquisthions made over the last two years

Date of Acquisition

Assets Acquired

Consideration

Reasons for the Acquisition

june 2006

May 2006

November 2005

October 2005

October 2004

Certain brands and assets
of Landmark Seed
Company, a leading
producer and distnbutor
of quality professional
seed and turfgrasses.

Certain brands and assets
of Turf-Seed, Inc, a
leading producer of
quality commercial
turfgrasses, including
49% equity interast in
Turf-Seed Europe, which
distrnibutes Turf-Seed's
grass vaneties throughout
the European Union and
other countrnies in the
Fegion,

All the outstanding shares
of Gutwein & Co., Inc
(“Gutwein™), a leader in
the growing North
Amenca wild bird food
category

All the outstanding shares
of Rod McLetllan Company
(“RMC"), a leading
branded producer and
marketer of soil and
landscape products in the
western U S

All the outstanding shares
of Smith & Hawken, Ltd.,
a leader in the outdoor
living and gardening
lifestyle category.

Cash of $6 2 millien with
an additional $1 million
deferred to future
penods,

Cash of $10.0 million plus
assumed habilities of
$4.5 milion. Contingent
consideration based on
future performance of the
business due in 2012 that
may approximate

$15 muthon which would
be recorded as additional
purchase price.

$78 3 mition in cash plus
assumed liabilities of
$4 7 million

$20 5 million In cash plus
assumed ligbilities of
$6 8 mitlion.

$73.6 million in cash plus
assumed liabilities of
$13 9 million

Transaction enhances the
Company's position i the
global turfgrass seed
industry and compliments
the acquisition of Turf-
Seed, Inc,

Integration of Turf-Seed’s
extensive professional
seed sales and
distribution network with
the Company’s existing
presence and industry
leading brands in the
consumer seed market
will strengthen the
Company’s overall global
position in the seed
category

Gutwein’s Morning Song®
branded products are
sold at leading mass
retallers, grocery, pet and
general merchandise
stores This acquisition
gives the Company its
entry into the North
America wild bird food
category We are
leveraging the strengths
of both organizations to
dnve continued growth In
this category

RMC compliments our
existing line of growing
media products and has
been integrated into that
business.

The power and flexibibity
of the Smith & Hawken?®
brand in outdoor living
fits our strategy to extend
our reach into adjacent
lawn and garden
categones and to own
industry leading brands in
every category (n which
we compete,
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Preliminary allocations of purchase price to assets acquired and tiabilities assumed have been
recorded for all acquisitions made dunng fiscal 2006, based on estimated fair values at the date of the
acquisitions The Company has finalized purchase accounting allocations for the RMC acquisition and
expects to complete the Gutwein allocation during the first quarter of fiscal 2007 Purchase price
altocations for the assets acquired from Turf-Seed, Inc. and Landmark Seed Company will be completed
during fiscal 2007

On a pro forma basis, net sales for the year ended September 30, 2005 would have been
$2 48 bilion (an increase of $114 5 million) had the acquisitions of RMC and Guiwein, and the brands
and assets from Turf-Seed and Landmark Seed occurred as of October 1, 2004 The pro forma reported
net income for the year ended September 30, 2005 would have increased by approximately $6.5 million
or $0 09 cents per diluted common share Due to the timing of these acquisitions n fiscal 2006, pro
forma results would not be matenally different from actual results for the year ended September 30,
2006

On a pro forma basis, net sales for the years ended September 30, 2004, would have been
$2.26 billion (an increase of $148 5 million) had the acquisition of Smith & Hawken, Ltd occurred as of
October 1, 2003 Reported net Income on a pro forma basis would have decreased by approximately
$1.6 million, or $0 02 per common share, for the year ended September 30, 2004

Scotts LawnService®

From fiscal 2004 through 2006, the Company’s Scotts LawnService® segment acquired 12 tndividual
lawn service entities for a total cost of approximately $14 8 mitlion The following table summarizes the
details of these transactions by fiscal year (dotlar amounts in millions)

Fiscal Year

2006 2005 2004
Number of individual acquisitions 5 3 4
Total cost $44 %64 $40
Portion of cost paid in cash 34 4.1 30
Notes 1ssued and hiabilities assumed 10 23 1.0
Goodwill 35 47 30
Other intangible assets 0.7 09 06
Warking capital and property, plant and equipment 02z 08 0.4

In addition to the above, the Company acquired the minority interest in the Scotts LawnService®
business during fiscal 2004 for $5.2 million ($2.0 mullion in cash and $3.2 million in seller notes). The
purchase pnice was allocated to goodwill in the amount of $5 1 mition and other intangibte assets in the
amount of $o 1 millton Substantially all of the recorded goodwill relating to the Scotts LawnService®
acquisitions 15 deductible for tax purposes. Goodwill 1s not being amortized for financial reporting
purposes Other intangible assets consist primanly of customer lists and non-compete agreements, and
are being amortized for financial reporting purposes over a penod of 7 and 3 years, respectively. These
acquisttions are deemed immatenal for pro forma disclosure.

Dunng fiscal 2004, the Company acquired the minonty interest in a subsidiary for $3 2 million, the
cost of which was allocated to intangible assets

NOTE 6. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

tn accordance with SFAS 142, goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are not subject to
amortization Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment by applying a
fair-value based test on an annual basis or more frequently if circumstances indicate a potential
impairment The Company performed its annual impairment analysis of indefinite-lived intangible assets
and goodwill during the first quarter of fiscal 2006, which resutted 1n an impairment charge of
$1 o million associated with a tradename no longer in use In its European consumer bustness The
European consumer business of our International reporting segment and Smith & Hawken expenenced
significant off plan performance in 2006 Management believes the off plan performance of the European

61




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

consumer business was dnven largely by category declines in the European consumer markets The off
plan performance of these two businesses was an indication that, more-likely-than-not, the fair values of
the related reporting units and tndefinite-lived intangibles have declined below their carrying amount
Accordingly, an intenm tmpairment test was performed for the goodwill and indefinite-lived tradenames
of these reporting units during the fourth quarter Management engaged an independent vatuation firm
to assist in the interim impairment assessment The value of all indefinite-lived tradenames was
determined using a royalty savings methodology similar to that employed when the associated
businesses were acquired but using updated estimates of sales, cash flow and profitability The fair
value of the Company’'s reporting units for purposes of goodwill testing was determined primanly by
employing a discounted cash flow methodology As a result of the intenm impairment test, the Company
recorded a $65 4 mittion non-cash impairment charge, $62 3 million of which was associated with
indefinite-lived tradenames that continue to be employed 1n the consumer portion of the International
reporting segment The balance of the fiscal 2006 fourth quarter impairment charge was tn our North
Amernica segment and consisted of $1.3 milien for a Canadian tradename being phased out and

$1 8 million related to goodwill of a pottery business we exited The intenm impairment testing of the
Smith & Hawken goodwill and indefinite-lived tradename did not indicate impairment

In the first quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company completed 1its annual impairment analysis of
goodwill and indefimite-lived tradenames and determined that tradenames associated with the consumer
business in the United Kingdom were impaired The fair value of the tradenames was determined using
the royalty savings approach described above The reduction in the value of the tradenames has resulted
primarily from a decline in the profitability of the U K growing media business and unfavorable category
mix trends As a result of this evaluation, an impairment charge of $22.0 million was recorded for certain
indefinite-lived tradenames associated with this business,

The following table presents goodwill and intangible assets as of September 30, 2006 and 2005
{dollars in mithons)

September 30, September 30,
2006 2005
Weighted  Gross Net Gross Net
Average Carrying Accumulated Carrying  Carrying  Accumulated  Carrying
Life Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Amortizable intangible
assets.
Technology 13 $543 $(343 $ 200 $49.4 $(298 $ 19.6
Customer accounts 17 $805 (179) 62.6 49.1 (11.6) 37.5
Tradenames 17 $ 113 (49) 6.4 1173 (42 7.1
Other 10 $111 2 (75 6) 35.6 1086 (71.5) 37.1
Total amortizable
intangible assets, net 124.6 1013
Unamortizable intangible
assets
Tradenames 300.1 338 2
Total intangible assets,
net 424.7 4395
Goodwill 458.1

4329
Total goodwill and
intangible assets, net $882 8 $872 4
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The changes to the net carrying value of goodwill by segment for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2006 and 2005, are as follows (in millions)

Nerth Scotts Other/
Amenca LawnService®  International  Corporate Total
Balance as of September 30, 2004 $1087 $100 3 $118 9 $ - %4179
Increases due to acquisitions - 47 - 24 6 293
Reclassifications (80 —_ (27) - (107
Other, primanly cumulative translation 02 — (3 8) — (3.6)
Balance as of September 30, 2005 190 9 105 0 112.4 24.6 4329
Increases due to acquisitions 16 6 3.6 - - 202
Impairment (1 8) — - - (1 8)
Other, pnmanly cumulative transtation — — 6.8 - 6 8
Balance as of September 30, 2006 $205.7 $108 6 $119.2 $24 6 $458 1

The total amortization expense for the years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was
$16.0 million, $17 6 milion and $8.3 million, respectively Amortization expense 15 estimated to be as
follows for the years ended September 30 (in millions):

2007 $138
2008 137
2009 12.0
2010 101
2011 9.6

NOTE 7. RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company sponsors a defined contribution profit shaning and 401(k) plan for substantially all
U S. associates. The Company provides a base contnibution equal to 2% of compensation up to 50% of
the Social Security taxable wage base plus 4% of remaining compensation Associates also may make
pretax contributions from compensation that are matched by the Company at 100% of the associates’
initial 3% contnbution and 50% of thetr remaining contribution up to 5% The Company recorded charges
of $10 3 million, $10.8 mitlion and $9.7 million under the plan in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively

The Company sponsors two defined benefit plans for certain US associates Benefits under these
plans have been frozen and closed to new associates since 1997. The benefits under the primary plan
are based on years of service and the associates’ average final compensation or stated amounts The
Company’s funding policy, consistent with statutory requirements and tax considerations, 1s based on
actuanal computations using the Projected Unit Credit method The second frozen plan 15 a non-quabfied
supplemental pension plan This plan provides for incremental pension payments so that total pension
payments equal amounts that would have been payable from the Company’s pension plan if it were not
for imitations imposed by the income tax regulations.

The Company sponsors defined benefit pension plans associated with its International businesses
in the United Kingdom, the Netherlands, Germany, and France These plans generally cover ali associates
of the respective businesses with retirement benefits primanly based on years of service and compensa-
tion levels. Dunng fiscal 2004, the U K plans were closed to new participants, but existing participants
continue to accrue benefits. All newly hired associates of the U.K business now participate 0 a new
defined contnibution plan in lieu of the defined benefit plans
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The following tables present information about benefit obligations, plan assets, annual expense,
assumptions and other information about the Company’s defined benefit pension plans {in milhons)

Curtatled Defined
Benefit Plans

international
Benefit Plans

2006 2005 2006 2005

Change in projected benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $961 $921 $1582 $1309
Service cost - - 42 33
Interest cost 52 52 77 71
Plan participants’ contnbutions - - 09 11
Curtailment / setttement loss (gain) - 23 (11) -
Actuanal loss (gan) (1.7) 20 34 24 8
Benefits paid (6 2} (55 47 47)
Foreign currency translation — - 10 1 (43)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $934 $961 $1787 $1582
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year $934 $961 $1545 $1433
Change In plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $725 $696 $964 3800
Actual return on plan assets 44 8.3 98 149
Employer contnibution 02 0.1 72 76
Plan participants’ contributions — - 0.9 11
Benefits paid (6 2) (5 5) (47) (4.7)
Foreign currency translation - - 65 (2 5)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $709 $725 %1161 $964
Amounts recognized in the balance sheets consist of:
Funded Status — projected benefit obligation in excess of plan

assets as of September 30 measurement date $(225 $(23.6) %$(62.6) $(618)
Unrecogmzed losses 20973 321 46 8 45 4
Net amount recognized 6.8 Bs {15 8) (16.4)
Additional minimum pension hability (293) (321) (24 3) (32 2)
Total amount accrued $(225) $(36) $(401) $(486)
Weighted average assumptions used in devetopment of projected

benefit obligation:
Discount rate 593% 563% 4.86% 468%
Rate of compensation increase n/a n/a 35% 3 5%
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Curtatled Defined
Benefit Plan

International
Benefit Plans

2006 2005 2004

2006 2005 2004

Components of net periodic benefit cost

Service cost $ — $ — $ — $42 $33 %42
Interest cost 52 52 51 77 7.1 66
Expected return on plan assets 55 G4 (45 Go (630 (3
Net amortization 22 2.6 26 20 1.4 18
Net periodic benefit cost 19 24 32 69 55 73
Curtailment / settlement loss (gain) — 23 — (12) — (03)
Total benefit cost $19 $47 $32 $57 $55 $70

Curtailed Defined
Benefit Plan

International
Benefit Plans

2006 2005 2004

2006 2005 2004

Weighted average assumptions used in development of
net periodic benefit cost:

Discount rate 5 63% 5.75% 6.0%
Expected return on plan assets 80% 80% 8.0%
Rate of compensation increase n/a nfa nfa

Other Information.

4.68% 535% 525%
69% 75% 75%
35% 37% 37%

International

Curtailed Defined Benefit
Benefit Plans Plans
Plan asset allocations:
Target for September 30, 2007
Equity secunities 60% 53%
Debt secunties 40% 47%
September 30, 2006,
Equity secunties 66% 56%
Debt secunties 34% 43%
Other — 1%
September 30, 2005.
Equity secunties 63% 61%
Debt secunties 36% 38%
Other 1% 1%
Expected contrnbutions n fiscal 2007
Company $ 41 $70
Employee — 09
Expected future benefit payments.
2007 $ 6.4 $52
2008 6.4 52
2009 6.5 53
2010 6.5 56
2011 6.6 56

Total 2012 to 2016 33.8

&5
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Investment Strategy-

The Company mantains target allocation percentages among various asset classes based on an
individual investment policy established for each of the vanous pension plans which are designed to
achieve long term objectives of return, while mitigating against downside nisk and considenng expected
cash requirements to fund benefit payments Our mvestment policies are reviewed from time to time to
ensure consistency with our long-term objectives

Basis for Long-Term Rate of Return on Asset Assumptions:

The Company’s expected long-term rate of return on asset assumptions are dernived from studies
conducted by third parties. The studies include a review of anticipated future long-term performance of
individual asset classes and consideration of the appropniate asset allocation strategy given the
anticipated requirements of the plan to determine the average rate of earnings expected on the funds
mvested to provide for benefits under the various pension plans While the studies give appropriate
consideration to recent fund performance and histoncal returns, the assumptions prnmaniy represent
expectations about future rates of return over the long term

NOTE 8. ASSOCIATE MEDICAL BENEFITS

The Company provides comprehensive major medical benefits to certain of its retired associates
and their dependents. Substantially all of the Company’s domestic associates who were hired before
January 1, 1998 become eligible for these benefits «f they retire at age 55 or older with more than ten
years of service The plan requires certain mimimum contnbutions from retired associates and includes
provisions to it the overall cost increases the Company 1s required to cover, The Company funds its
portion of retiree medical benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.
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The following table sets forth the information about the retiree medical plan for domestic associates
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(in millions)
2006 2005
Change in Accumulated Plan Benefit Obligation (APBO)
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $347 $338
Service cost o7 07
Interest cost 19 20
Plan participants’ contributions 07 06
Loss on curtailment -~ 25
Actuanal gain (23 (z1)
Benefits paid (25) (28
APBO at end of year $332 %347
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ — %5 -
Employer contnbution 1.8 2.2
Plan participants’ contnbutions o7 0.6
Benefits paid (2.5) (2.8)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ — % -
Amounts recognized in the balance sheets consist of:
Funded status as of September 30 measurement date $(332) $(347)
Unrecognized prior loss 37 61
Accrued benefit cost (net amount recognized) $(295) $(28 6)
Discount rate used in development of APBQ 5.86% _ 551%
Development of accrued benefit cost
Accrued benefit cost at beginning of year $286 $250
Postretirement benefit cost 27 33
Curtallment charge — 2.5
Employer contributions (1.8) {2 2)
Accrued benefit cost at end of year $295 $286
2006 2005 2004

Components of net periodic benefit cost
Service cost $07 %07 % o5
Interest cost 1.9 2.0 2.0
Amartization of -

Actuarnal loss 0.1 0.6 04

Prior service cost - - (0 4)
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost 2.7 33 2.5
Curtaitment charge — 25 —
Total postretirement benefit cost $27 $58 % 25
Discount rate used in development of net periodic benefit cost 551% 5.75% 6.00%
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On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modermization Act (the
“Act”) became taw The Act provides for a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit
plans that provide a prescniption drug benefit that 1s at least actuanally equivatent to the benefit
established by the Act On May 19, 2004, the FASB 1ssued Staff Position No 106-2, “Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act
of 2003” (the “FSP”) The FSP provides guidance on accounting for the effects of the Act, which the
Company adopted at the begnning of its fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 The APBO at September 30,
2006, has been reduced by a deferred actuarial gain in the amount of $6 o million to reflect the effect
of the subsidy related to benefits attnbuted to past service The amortization of the actuarial gain and
reduction of service and interest costs served to reduce net periodic post retirement benefit cost for
fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004 by $0 9, $0 2 and $o 1 million, respectively.

For measurement as of September 30, 2006, management has assumed that health care costs will
Increase at an annual rate of 8 0% in fiscal 2007, decreasing o 50% per year to an ultimate trend of
5 00% In 2013. A 1% Increase i health cost trend rate assumptions would increase the APBO as of
September 30, 2006 and 2005 by $0 1 million and $0.2 million, respectively A 1% decrease in health
cast trend rate assumptions would decrease the APBO as of September 30, 2006 and 2005 by
$0 2 million and $0.2 msllion, respectively. A 1% increase or decrease In the same rate would not have a
matenal effect on service or interest costs

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments under the plan are expected to be paid by the Company and the
retirees for the fiscal years indicated (in millions)

Gross Medicare Net
Benefit Retiree Part D Company
Payments  Contnbutions  Subsidy  Payments
2007 . %136 $ (c9) $(03) $24
2008 40 (1.0) {03) 27
2009 42 (11 (og) 27
2010 44 (13) (o 4) 27
2011 4.6 (1.5) (04) 27
2012-2016 26 8 (109) (=8 13.1

The Company also provides comprehensive major medical benefits to its associates The Company
1s self-insured for certain health benefits up to $o0 3 million per occurrence per individual The cost of
such benefits 15 recognized as expense in the perod the claim is incurred. This cost was $21 8 million,
$17.9 million, and $17.0 million in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively

NOTE 9. DEBT

September 30,
) 2006 2005
{in millions)

Revolver $2538 $1662
Senior Subordinated 6%4% Notes, due 2013 2000 200.0
Notes due to sellers 15 4 81
Foreign bank borrowings and term loans 28 68
Other g2 12 4
4812 3935
Less current portions 60 11.1

$4752 $3824
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Matunties of short- and long-term debt for the next five fiscal years and thereafter are as follows
(in millions).

2007 $ 60
2008 46
2009 12
2010 254 6
2011 04
Thereafter 214
$4812

As of july 21, 2005, the Company entered into a Revolving Credit Agreement for the purpose of
providing funds for working capital and other general corporate purposes of the Company The Revolving
Credit Agreement consists of an aggregate $1 05 bilion multi-currency revolving credit commitment,
expiring July 21, 2010 Borrowings may be made in vanous currencies including United States dollars,
Euro dollars, Bntish pounds sterling, Australian dollars and Canadian dollars The Company may, at any
time prior to July 21, 2010, request additional revolving credit commitments from the lenders up to an
aggregate amount, when combined with the existing commitments, not to exceed $1 15 billion

The Revolving Credit Agreement has several borrowing options, including interest rates that are
based on (1) a LIBOR rate plus a margin based on a Leverage Ratio (as defined) or (u) the greater of the
prime rate or the Federal Funds Effective Rate (as defined) plus 1/2 of 1% plus a margin based on a
Leverage Ratio Facility fees are also based on the Leverage Ratio of the Company and, as of
September 30, 2006, will accrue at 0 20% of the committed amounts per annum The weighted average
Interest rate on amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Agreement was 4 4% at September 30,
2006

Swingtine loans are also available under the Revolving Credit Agreement provided that (1} the
aggregate principal amount of swingline loans outstanding at any time may not exceed $100 milion and
(1) the sum of outstanding letters of credit, swingline loans and other loans made under the Revolving
Credit Agreement may not exceed $1 o5 tullion

The terms of the Revolving Credit Agreement provide for customary representations and warranties
and affirmative covenants The Revolving Credit Agreement also contains customary negative covenants
providing bmitations, subject to negotiated carve-outs, on liens, contingent obligations, fundamental
changes, acquisittons, investments, toans and advances, indebtedness, restrictions on subsidiary
distributions, transactions with affiliates and officers, sales of assets, sale and leaseback transactions,
changing the Company’s fiscal year end, modification of specified debt instruments, negative pledge
clauses, entenng into new lines of business, restricted payments (including dividend payments restricted
toe $75 million annually based on the current Leverage Ratio of the Company) and redemption of
specified indebtedness. The Revolving Credit Agreement also requires the maintenance of a specified
Leverage Ratio and Minimum Interest Coverage {(both as defined)

The terms of the Revolving Credit Agreement include customary events of default such as payment
defaults, cross-defaults to other matenal indebtedness, bankruptcy and insolvency, the eccurrence of a
defined change in control or the failure to observe the negative covenants and other covenants related
to the operation and conduct of the business of the Company and its subsidianes Upon an event of
default, the lenders may, among other things, terminate their commitments under the Revolving Credit
Agreement and declare any of the then outstanding loans due and payable immediately

Borowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement are guaranteed by Scotts Miracle-Gro and
substantially all of its domestic subsidianes Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement are also
collateralized by a pledge by Scotts Miracle-Gro and its domestic subsidiaries of the capital stock of
substantially all of such domestic subsidianies and a majority of the capital stock of certain foreign
subsidianes that are first-tier subsidianes of such domestic subsidianes

The 654% senior subordinated notes (“6%:% Notes”) were sold at par, pay interest semi-annually on
May 15 and November 15, have a ten-year matunity, and are guaranteed by certain current and future
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domestic restricted subsidianes of the Company (see Note 24) Such guarantees are unsecured senior
subordinated obligations of the Company The 654% Notes may be called after November 2008, at a
premium to par value of 3 313%, with the call premium declining each year thereafter The 6%4% Notes
contain covenants limiting or restrcting the Company 1n certain types of transactions Limitations or
restrictions affect transactions involving liens, contingent obligations, capitat expenditures, acquisitions,
tnvestments, loans and advances, indebtedness, subsidiary distnibutions, asset sales, sale and lease-
backs, and dividends The 634% Notes also contan cross default provisions that may occur should the
Company default in the abservance or performance of other indebtedness or covenants, causing the
obligations therein to become immediately due and payable prior to the stated matunty thereef upon
passing of a cure period

The Company was in compliance with the terms of all borrowing agreements at September 30,
2006. See Note 22 for disclosure as to a recapitalization plan announced on December 12, 2006 to
return $750 million to shareholders that will require a restructuning of the Company’s pnnapal long-term
financing arrangements.

NOTE 10. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

2006 2005
(in millions)

Preferred shares, no par value

Authonzed o 2 shares 0.2 shares

Issued 0 0 shares 0 o shares
Common shares, no par value, $ o1 stated value per share

Authorized 100 0 shares 100 o shares

Issued 68 1 shares 67.8 shares

In fiscal 1995, The Scotts Company merged with Stem’s Miracle-Gro Products, Inc (Miracle-Gro) At
September 30, 2006, the former shareholders of Miracle-Gro, including Hagedom Partnership L.P, owned
approamately 31% of Scotts Miracle-Gra’s outstanding common shares and, thus, have the ability to
significantly influence the election of directors and approval of other achions requinng the approval of Scotts
Miracle-Gro's shareholders

Under the terms of the Miracle-Gro merger agreement, the former shareholders of Miracle-Gro may not
collectively acquire, directly or indirectly, beneficial ownership of Voting Stock (as that term 15 defined in the
Miracle-Gro merger agreement) representing mare than 49% of the total voting power of the outstanding
Voting Stock, except pursuant to a tender offer for 100% of that total voting power, which tender offer 1s
made at a pnce per share which 1s not less than the market pnce per share on the last trading day before
the announcement of the tender offer and 15 conditioned upon the receipt of at least 50% of the Voting
Stock beneficially owned by shareholders of Scotts Miracle-Gro other than the former shareholders of
Miracle-Gro and their affiliates and associates.

Scotts Miracle-Gro grants share-based awards annually to officers and other key employees of the
Company and non-employee directors Historically, these awards primanly inciuded options with exercise
pnces equal to the market price of the underlying common shares on the date of grant with a term of
10 years. Scotts Miracle-Gro also has awarded stock appreciation nghts (*SARs") with a stated price
determined by the closing prnice of Scotts Miracle-Gro’s common shares on the date of grant SARs result
in less dilution than option awards as the SAR holder receives a net share settlement upon exercise In
recent years, the Company also has begun to grant awards of restricted stock and performance shares.
These share-based awards have been made under plans approved by the shareholders Generally, tin
respect of grants to employees, a three-year chff vesting schedule 1s used for all share-based awards
unless decided otherwise by the Compensation and Organization Committee of the Board of Directors
The Company uses newly 1ssued common shares or treasury shares, if available, in conjunction with its
share-based compensation awards. Grants to non-employee directors typically vest in one year or less A
maximum of 18 million common shares may be delivered for i1ssuance under these plans At Septem-
ber 30, 2006, approximately 5.1 million common shares are not subject to outstanding awards and are
available to underlie the grant of new share-based awards Subsequent to September 30, 2006, Scotts
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Miracle-Gro granted a total of 991,600 share-based awards to key employees These awards had an
estimated fair value of $19 9 million as of the date of grant

The fotlowing 1s a recap of the share-based awards granted over the periods indicated
Year Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004
Key employees
Options 835,640 965,600 118,000
Stock appreciation rights - - 775,500
Restricted stock 184,595 101,000 -
Performance shares 30,000
Board of Directars — Options 126,000 147,000 152,500
Total share-based awards 1,176,235 1,213,600 1,046,000
Fair value at grant dates (in millions) $ 209 $ 151 % 110

Total share-based compensation and the tax benefit recognized in compensation expense were as
fotlows for the periods indicated (in millions)

Year Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004
Share-based compensation $15.7 $10.7 $78
Tax benefit recognized 59 39 2.9

Had compensation expense been recognized for unvested stock options granted prior to the
Company’s adoption of the expense recognition provisions of SFAS 123 as of October 1, 2002, the
Company would have recorded net income and net income per share as follows (in millions, except per
share data)

For the Fiscal

Year Ended
September 30,
2004

Net income $1009
Stock-based compensation expense tncluded in reported net income, net of tax 49
Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based

method for all awards, net of tax ()
Net income, as adjusted $ 987
Net income per share, as reported

Basic $ 156

Diuted $ 152
Net income per share, as adjusted

Basic J $ 153

Diluted $ 148

The “as adjusted” amounts shown above are not necessarly representative of the impact on net
income In future penods
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Stock Options/SARs

Aggregate option and stock appreciation right award activity consists of the following (options/SARs
in mithons)

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

2006 2008 2004

WTD WTD WTD.

Avg Avg Avg.
No of Exercise No of Exercise No of Exercise

Options/SARs Price Options/SARs Price Options/SARs Price
Beginning balance 64 $23 09 76 $19 87 82 $ 1750
Granted 10 $4358 12 $3456 12 $29 4
Exercised {09) $2015 (21) $ 1599 (16) $14 67
Forfeited (©3) $37 44 (©3) $28 06 (02) $24 28
Ending balance 62 $26 o9 6.4 $23 09 76 $1987
Exercisable 38 $2038 34 $ 17 89 46 $1697

The following summarizes certain information pertaining to option and stock appreciation nght
awards outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2006 (options/SARs in millions).

Awards Outstanding Awards Exercisable
No of WTD Avg WTD Avg No. of

Range of Options/  Remaining Exercise Options/  Exercise

Exercise Price SARs Life Price SARS Price
$ 8.50 - $14.72 0.4 0.73 $1081 0.4 $1081
$15.00 - $17.38 07 319 1572 0.7 1572
$1750 — $19.98 1.4 396 18 85 1.4 18 85
$20.07 - $25 62 11 6.37 24 49 1.1 24 49
$29.08 — $31 56 09 741 29 41 — —
$32 58 - $40 53 09 8 51 34 63 0.1 3415
$42.51 - $49 55 o8 9.36 4374 0.1 4955
2 $26 09 38 $2038

The intrinsic value of the options and stock appreciation right awards outstanding and exercisable

at September 30, were as follows (in millions):
2006 2005 2004

Outstanding $1141  $1336 $928
Exercisable 916 887 69 5

The fair value of each award granted has been estimated on the grant date using the Binomial model
for fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 and the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for fiscal 2004 using the
assumptions noted in the following table Expected market pnce volatility 1s based on implied volatilities
from traded options on Scotts Miracle-Gro’s common shares and histoncal volatiity on the Scotts Miracle-
Gro’s common shares Histoncal data, including demographic factors impacting histonical exercise behawvior,
Is used to estimate option exercise and employee termination within the valuation model The nsk-free rate
for penods within the contractual life of the option 1s based on the U S Treasury yield curve in effect at the

12



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

time of grant The weighted average assumptions for those awards granted in fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and
fiscal 2004 are as follows

Year Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004
Market price volatility 23 0% 23 9% 243%
Risk-free interest rates 4-5% 37% 33%
Expected dividend yield 1.2% 0 0% 0 0%
Expected ufe of options/SARs 619 6.15 6 20
Estimated weighted-average fair value per
share of options/SARs $12 04 $1057 $8.86
Restricted Stock
Aggregate restncted stock award activity 1s as follows:
WTD Avg.
Grant Date
No of Fair Value
Shares per Share
Balance September 30, 2004 30,000 $29 08
Granted 101,000 33.03
Vested (1,600) 34 50
Forfeited (15,000) 32 20
Balance September 30, 2005 114,400 $32 07
Granted (including 30,000 performance shares) 214,595 43.43
Vested (10,400) 4117
Forferted (15,800) 42 51
Balance September 30, 2006 302,795 $39 26

As of September 30, 2006, there was $14 2 milion of total unrecogruzed compensation cost related
to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements. The unrecognized compensation cost 1S
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average perod of 2 3 years Unearned compensation Is
amortized over the vesting pertod for the particular grant and 1s recognized as a component of “Selling,
general and administrative” expense within the Consolidated Statements of Operations

The total intrninsic value of options exercised was $23.2 million, $41 7 million and $26 7 miliion for
fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively The total fair value of restricted stock vested was
$0.4 million and $0.1 milion dunng fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, respectively No restncted stock vested
in fiscal 2004.

Cash received from option exercises under all share-based payment arrangements for fiscal 2006
was $17 6 million. The tax benefit realized from the tax deductions from option exercises under the
share-based payment arrangements totaled $8 7 million for fiscal 2006

NOTE 11. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

The following table (in millions, except per share data) presents information necessary to calculate
basic and diluted earnings per common share. Basic earnings per common share are computed by
dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding Diluted earnings
per common share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding plus all potentially dilutive securities Options to purchase 0 15 milhon, 0 o4 million
and o 2 miilion common shares for the years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively,
were not included 1n the computation of diluted eamings per common share These options were
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excluded from the calculation because the exercise price of these options was greater than the average
market price of the common shares in the respective periods, and therefore, they were anti-dilutive

Year Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004
Income from continuing operations $132.7 $100 4 $1005
Income from discontinued operations - 0.2 04
Net income $1327 $100 6 $100.9
BASIC EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding
during the penod 675 66 8 647
Income from continuing operations $ 197 $ 15 $ 155
income from discontinued operations - - 0 01
Net income $ 197 $ 151 $ 156
DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE.
Weighted-average common shares outstanding
during the period 67.5 66.8 647
Potential common shares 1.9 18 1.9
Weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding and dilutive potential common
shares 69 4 68 6 66 6
Income from continuing operations $191 $ 147 $ 151
Income from discontinued operations - — 001
Net income $ 101 $ 147 $ 152

Through September 30, 2006, Scotts Miracle-Gro had reacquired 2 o mithon common shares to be
held in treasury at an aggregate cost of $87 9 million under its share repurchase program. Common
shares held in treasury totaling o 5 million common shares have been reissued in support of share-
based compensation awards and employee purchases of common shares under the employee stock
purchase plan. See Note 22 for disclosure as to a recapitalization plan announced on December 12,
2006 to return $750 million to shareholders via a tender offer to repurchase up to $250 milion of our

common shares and a special dividend

NOTE 12. INCOME TAXES

The provision for iIncome taxes consists of the following (in millions)

Year Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004
Currently payable
Federal $68.3 $55.9 $33.4
State 6.0 7.0 49
Foreign 6.3 84 45
Deferred
Federal (05) (11 8) 149
State 16 (1 8) 02
Foreign _(15) = 01
$80 2 $577 $58 0
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The domestic and foreign components of income before taxes are as follows (tn millions)
Year Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004
Domestic $253 6 $170 0 $143 2
Foreign (409 _(119) 153
Income before taxes $2129 $1581 $1585

A reconciliation of the federal corporate income tax rate and the effective tax rate on income before
income taxes from continuing operations 1s summarized below (in millions)

Year Ended September 30,

2006 20058 2004
Statutory income tax rate 35.0% 35 0% 35.0%
Effect of foreign operations (o5) 02 (o4
State taxes, net of federal benefit 2.3 18 21
Change in state NOL & credit carryforwards 0.1 19 (o 8)
Change n vatuation allowance - — (o 6)
Other 0.8 (24 13
Effective iIncome tax rate 377% 36.5% 36.6%

The net current and non-current components of deferred income taxes recognized in the Consoli-
dated Balance Sheets are (in millions):

September 30,

2006 2005

Net current deferred tax asset (classified with prepaid and other
assets) $ 52.6 $15.6
Net non-current deferred tax liability (classified with other hiabilities) (49 2) (45)
Net deferred tax asset $ 3.4 $111

The components of the net deferred tax asset are as foltows (in millions)
September 30,
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2006 2005
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Inventories $ 130 $ 114
Accrued habilities 390 547
Postretirement benefits 33.¢ 38.4
Accounts recevable 33 65
Other 210 183
Gross deferred tax assets - 110 2 1293
Valuation allowance (2.2) (2.4)
Deferred tax assets 108.0 126 9
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Property, plant and equipment (44 5) {475
Intangible assets (52 1) (59 9)
Other (8 o) (8 4)
Deferred tax liability (104.6) (115 8)
Net deferred tax asset $ 34 $ 111
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Tax benefits relating to state net operating loss carryforwards were $4 5 million and $5 4 million at
September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively State net operating loss carryfoerward penods range from
5 to 20 years Any losses not previously utilized within a specific state’s carryforward peniod will expire
The tax benefits relating to state net operating loss camyforwards for 2006 include $2 2 million relating
to the acquisition of Smith & Hawken® As these losses may only be used against income of Smith &
Hawken®, and cannot be used to offset income of the consolidated group, a full valuation allowance has
been placed on this portion Tax benefit associated with state tax credits was $o 3 miltion and
%0 4 million at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively Any credits not prevtously utilized will begin
to expire starting in fiscal year 2007

In accordance with APB 23, deferred taxes have not been provided on unremitted earnings of certain
foreign subsidianes and foreign corporate jont ventures of approximately $72 5 mullion that arose in
fiscal years ended on or before September 30, 20086, stnce such earnings have been permanently
reinvested

The American Jobs Creation Act (the “AJCA”) provides a deduction of 85% on certain foreign
earnings repatrnated The Company was not able to take advantage of this deduction based upon its
current foreign income and tax rates The AJCA also provided a deduction calculated as a percentage of
qualfied income from manufactunng in the United States This deduction was codified as Internal
Revenue Code §199 The percentage deduction increases from 3% to 9% over a 6-year penod beginning
with the Company’s 2006 fiscal year. In December 2004, the FASB 15sued a new staff position providing
for this deduction to be treated as a special deduction, as opposed to a tax rate reduction, in
accordance with SFAS 109 The benefit of this deduction did not have a matenal impact on the
Company’s effective tax rate n fiscal 2006

Management judgment is required in determining tax provisions and evaluating tax positions
Management believes its tax positions and related provisions reflected in the consolidated financial
statements are fully supportable and appropriate We establish reserves for additional income taxes that
may become due If our tax positions are challenged and not sustained Our tax provision includes the
impact of recording reserves and changes thereto The reserves for additional income taxes are based on
management’s best estimate of the ultimate resolution of the tax matter Based on currently avatlahle
information, we believe that the ultimate outcomes of any challenges to our tax posttions well not have a
material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows OQur tax provision
includes the impact of recording reserves and changes thereto

NOTE 13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A description of the Company’s financial instruments and the methods and assumptions used to
estimate their fair values 1s as follows
Long-Term Debt

The fawr value of the Company’s 654% Senior Subordinated Notes was estimated based on recent
trading information The carrying amounts of barrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement, are
considered to approximate their fair values.

Foreign Currency Swap Agreements

The Company uses foreign currency swap contracts to manage the exchange rate sk associated
with intercompany loans with foreign subsidianes that are denominated in dollars At September 30,
2006, the notional amount of outstanding contracts was $66 7 million with a fair value of $o 4 mitlion
The unrealized gain on the contracts approximates the unrealized loss on the intercompany loans
recognized by our foreign subsidianes

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

At September 30, 2006, the Company had outstanding interest rate swaps with major financial
institutions that effectively converted a portion of our vanable-rate debt denominated in the Euro dollar
and Bntish pound to a fixed rate The swaps agreements have a total U S dollar equivalent notional
amount of $108 2 mtllion with three-year terms expining November 2008 Under the terms of these
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swaps, the Company pays fixed rates of 2 98% on Euro denominated swaps and 4 76% on Bntish pound
denominated swaps At September 30, 2005, there were no outstanding interest rate swaps

The Company enters into interest rate swap agreements as a means to hedge 1ts vanable interest
rate exposure on debt instruments Since the interest rate swaps have been designated as hedging
instruments, their fair values are reflected 1n the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. Net amounts
to be received or paid under the swap agreements are reflected as adjustments to interest expense
Unrealized gains or losses resulting from valuing these swaps at fair value are recorded as elements of
accumulated other comprehensive loss within the Consolidated Balance Sheets The fair value of the
swap agreements was determined based on the present value of the estimated future net cash flows
using implied rates in the applicable yield curve as of the valuation date

Commodity Hedges

Company has entered into a strip of collars to partially mitigate the effect of fluctuating fue! costs
on the operating results of the Scotts LawnService® business through December 31, 2007 The collar 1s
being marked-to-market with an unrealized loss of approximately $o 2 million on the contracts recorded
as an element of other income or expense at September 30, 2006 The contracts are for approximately
3 2 million gallons of fuel

The Company has also entered into hedging arrangements to fix the price of a portion of its urea
needs through March 31, 2007 The contracts are designated as hedges of the Company’s exposure to
future cash flows associated with the cost of urea Unrealized gains or losses in the fair value of these
contracts are recorded to the accumulated other comprehensive loss component of shareholders’ equity
Gans or losses upon reahization will remain as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss
until the related inventory 15 sold Upon sale of the underlying inventory, the gain or loss will be
reclassified to cost of sales The fair value of the 66,000 aggregate tons hedged at September 30, 2006
was nil

Estimated Fair Values

The est:mated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows for the fiscal years
ended September 30 (in millions)

2006 2005

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

Revolving loans under Revolving Credit Agreement $2538 $2538 $1662 $1662
Senior Subardinated Notes 2000 194.0 2000 2015
Foreign bank borrowings and term loans 2.8 28 68 6.8
Foreign currency swap agreements 0.4 04 24 24
Interest rate swap agreements 1.3 1.3 — —
Commodity hedging instruments (02) (o 2) —_ —

Certain miscellaneous instruments included in the Company’s total debt balances for which fair
value determinations are not ascertainable have been excluded from the fair value table above The
excluded items at September 30, 2006 and 2005 {in millions) are as follows

2006 2008 ‘
Notes due to sellers $15 4 $ 81 ‘
Other 92 12.4

NOTE 14. OPERATING LEASES

The Company leases certam property and equipment from third parties under vanous nen-
cancelable operating lease agreements Certain lease agreements contain renewal and purchase options
The lease agreements generally provide that the Company pay taxes, insurance and maintenance

17




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

expenses related to the leased assets Future minimum lease payments for non-cancelable operating
leases at September 30, 2006, are as follows {in millions)

2007 $ 349
2008 317
2009 243
2010 190
2011 171
Thereafter 633
Total future mimmum lease payments $190 3

The Company also leases certain vehicles (primanly cars and light trucks) under agreements that are
cancelable after the first year, but typically continue on a month-to-month basis until canceled by the
Company The vehicle leases and certain other non-cancelable operating leases contain residual value
guarantees that create a contingent obligatton on the part of the Company to compensate the lessor If
the leased asset cannot be sold for an amount in excess of a specified minimum value at the conclusion
of the lease term If all such vehicle leases had been canceled as of September 30, 2006, the
Company’s residual value guarantee would have approximated $7.8 million Other residual value
guarantees apply only at the conclusion of the non-cancelable lease terin, as follows

Amount of Lease

Guarantee Termination Date
Scotts LawnService® vehicles $11 8 millon 2010
Corporate aircraft 12 2 milbon 2008 and 2010

Rent expense for fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 totaled $63 3 million, $579 mithon, and
$44 8 million, respectively

NOTE 15. COMMITMENTS

The Company has the following unconditional purchase obligations due during each of the next five
fiscal years that have not been recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 30, 2006
(in millions)

2007 $215.9
2008 778
2009 678
2010 37.3
2011 109

$4097

Purchase obligations primanily represent outstanding purchase orders for materials used in the
Company’s manufactunng processes Purchase obligations also inctude commitments for warehouse
services, seed, and out-sourced information services

NOTE 16. CONTINGENCIES

Management continually evaluates the Company’s contingencies, including vanous lawsuits and
claims which anse in the normal course of business, product and general liabitities, worker's compensa-
tion, property losses and other fiduciary liabilities for which the Company 1s self-insured or retains a
high exposure imit Self-insurance reserves are established based on actuanal estimates Legal costs
incurred 1n connection with the resolution of claims, lawsuits and other contingencies generally are
expensed as incurred In the opinion of management, its assessment of contingencies 1s reasonable and
related reserves, in the aggregate, are adequate, however, there can be no assurance that future
quarterly or annual operating results will not be matenally affected by final resolution of these matters
The following matters are the more significant of the Company's identified contingencies
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Environmental Matters

In 1997, the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency (the “Ohio EPA”) initiated an enforcement action
against the Company with respect to alleged surface water vielations and inadequate treatment
capabilities at the Maryswlle, Ohio facility and seeking corrective action under the federal Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act. The action related to discharges from on-site waste water treatment and
several discontinued on-site disposal areas

Pursuant to a Consent Order entered by the Union County Common Pleas Court in 2002, the
Company 1s actively engaged In restoring the site to eliminate exposure to waste maternals from the
discontinued on-site disposal areas

At September 30, 2006, $4 2 million was accrued for environmental and regulatory matters,
primarily related to the Marysville facillity Most of the accrued costs are expected to be paid in fiscal
2007, however, payments could be made for a period thereafter While the amounts accrued are
believed to be adequate to cover known environmental exposures based on current facts and estimates
of likely outcome, the adequacy of these accruals 1s based on several significant assumptions

s that all significant sites that must be remediated have been 1dentified,
» that there are no significant conditions of contamination that are unknown to us, and

¢ that with respect to the agreed judicial Consent Order in Ohio, the potentially contaminated soil
can be remediated in place rather than having to be removed and only specific stream segments
will require remediation as opposed to the entire stream

If there 15 a sigmificant change in the facts and circumstances surrounding these assumptions, 1t
could have a matenal impact on the ultimate outcome of these matters and our results of operations,
financial position and cash flows

During fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005, and fiscal 2004, we have expensed approximately $2 4 million,
$3 7 mutlion, and $3 3 million, respectively, for environmental matters.
AgrEve Environmental Health, Inc. v. The Scotts Company (Southern District of New York)

The Scotts Company v. Aventis 5.A. and Starlink Logistics, Inc. (Southern District of Ohio)

On September 30, 2005, all itigation among the aforementioned companies had been concluded
with the Company receiving a payment of approxmately $10 million, of which amount $8 9 million 1s
recorded n “Impairment, restructuring and other charges” within the Consolidated Statements of
QOperations (see Note 4)

Central Garden & Pet Company

The Scotts Company v. Central Garden, Southern District of Ohio

Central Garden v. Scotts & Pharmacia, Northern District of California

All litigation with Central Garden & Pet Company (“Central Garden”) has been concluded. On July 15,
2005, the Company receved approximately $15 million in satisfaction of the judgment against Central
Garden The Company has recognized the satisfaction of this judgment in its financial results for fiscal
2005 as follows (n millions):

Reversal of reserve aganst outstanding receivables due from Central Garden The
reserve was initially established through a charge to restructuring and other charges
within selling, general and administrative expenses, therefore, the reversal of the

reserve has been classified 1n a like manner. (See Note 4) $ 79
Portion of judgment classified with other income, net 41
Total amount included in income from operations 12.0

Portion of judgment applied to unreserved accounts recewvable due from Central Garden 3.0

Total judgment $15.0
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All pending litigation brought by Central Garden against the Company has been concluded including
the previously pending antitrust case 1n the Northern Distnet of California in which the Company
prevailed

U S Horticultural Supply, Inc. (F/K/A E.C. Geiger, Inc.}

On November 5, 2004, U S Horticultural Supply, Inc. (“Geiger”) filed suit against the Company 1n
the U.S District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania. The complaint alleges that the Company
conspired with another distributor, Gnffin Greenhouse Supplies, Inc., to restrain trade in the horticuttural
products market, tn violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Antitrust Act Geiger has not specified the
amount of monetary damages it 1s seeking., On June 2, 2006, the Court denied the Company’s motion to
dismiss the complaint The Company is currently engaged in discovery relating to Geiger's claim. The
deadline for fact discovery 1s March 8, 2007.

The Company intends to vigorously defend against Geiger's claims The Company believes that
Geiger's claims are without ment and that the tikebhood of an unfavorable outcome i1s remote Therefore,
no accrual has been established related to this matter. However, the Company cannot predict the
ultimate outcome with certainty. If the above action 1s determined adversely to the Company, the result
could have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial position and cash
flows Because Geiger has not specified an amount of monetary damages in the case {which may be
trebled under the antitrust statutes) and discovery has not yet concluded, any potential exposure that
the Company may face cannot be reasonably estimated at thts time.

Other

The Company has been named a defendant in a number of cases alleging injunes that the lawsuits
clarm resulted from exposure to ashestos-containing products, apparently based on the Company’s
histonc use of vermiculite in certain of 1its products. The complaints in these cases are not specific about
the plaintiffs’ contacts with the Company or its products The Company In each case 1s one of numerous
defendants and none of the claims seeks damages from the Company alone The Company believes that
the claims against it are without ment and 1s vigorously defending them It 1s not currently possible to
reasonably estimate a probable loss, If any, asseciated with the cases and, accordingly, no accrual or
reserves have been recorded In the consolidated financial statements There can be no assurance that
these cases, whether as a result of adverse outcomes or as a result of significant defense costs, will not
have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows

The Company 15 reviewing agreements and policies that may provide insurance coverage or
tndemnity as to these claims and 1s pursuing coverage under some of these agreements, although there
can be no assurance of the results of these efforts

The Company 1s involved In other lawsuits and claims which anse in the normal course of business.
These clarms irdividually and in the aggregate are not expected to result in a matenal adverse effect on
the Company’s results of operations, financial position or cash flows

NOTE 127. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit nsk consist
principally of trade accounts receivable. The Company sells 1its consumer products to a wide vanety of
retailers, including mass merchandisers, home centers, independent hardware stores, nursenes, garden
outlets, warehouse clubs and local and regienal chains. Professional products are sold to commercial
nursenies, greenhouses, landscape services, and growers of specialty agriculture crops

At September 30, 2006, 76% of the Company’s accounts receivable were due from customers
geographically lacated 1n North America Approximately 79% of these receivables were generated from
the consumer business with the remaining 21% due from customers of Scatts LawnService®, the
professional businesses (primarnly distributors), Smith & Hawken®, and Morning Song® OQur top 3
customers within the consumer business accounted for 53% of total consumer accounts recewvable
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At September 30, 2005, 76% of the Company’s accounts receivable were due from customers
geographically located in North America Approximately 83% of these recewvable were generated from the
Company’s consumer business with the remaining 17% generated from customers of Scotts LawnService®
and the professional businesses {primarnily distnbutors) Our top 3 customers within the consumer
business accounted for 80% of total consumer accounts receivable

The remainder of the Company’s accounts receivable at September 30, 2006 and 2005, were
generated from customers located outside of North America, pnmanly retailers, distnbutors, nursenes
and growers in Europe No concentrations of customers or individual customers within this group
account for more than 10% of the Company's accounts receivable at either balance sheet date

The Company’s three largest customers accounted for the following percentage of net sales in each
respective peniod.

Largest 2nd Largest 3rd Largest

Customer Customer Customer
2006 215% 11 2% 10.5%
2005 235% 119% 9 7%
2004 25 0% 12 9% 9.4%

Sales to the Company’s three largest customers are reported within the Company's North America
segment No other customers accounted for more than 10% of fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 or fiscal 2004 net
sales

NOTE 18. OTHER (INCOME) EXPENSE

Other (income) expense consisted of the following for the fiscal years ended September 30 (in
millions)-

2006 2005 2004
Royalty income $(6 8) $(65) $ (54
Gain from peat transaction (09 (08) (2.4)
Franchise fees {0 2) (03) (10)
Foreign currency (gains) losses {o7) 2.1 o7
Legal settlement - (4 0) -
Other, net (o6 20 _(07)
Total $(9 2) $(75) $(02)

|

NOTE 19. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On September 30, 2004, the Company consummated the sale of the intangibles comprising its
U S professional growing media business for $6 o million A gain of $4 1 million was recognized after
associated goodwill In the amount of $1 9 million was wntten off As a result of the sale, the Company
shut down a manufacturing facility and severed the associates employed in the business In accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
Of Long-Lived Assets,” these transactions have been accounted for as disposals of a component of the
Company The gain on the sale of the intangibles and the results of operations of the component are
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reported as discontinued operations in the accompanyig Consolidated Statements of Operations The
detail comprising the discontinued operations is as follows (iIn millions)

2006 2005 2004
Net sales $— $ — $ 177
Cost of sales = _ - _(189)
Gross profit - — {12)
Selling, general and admunistrative - 03 (11)
Gain on sale = - _ 41
Income from discontinued operations before income
taxes - 03 1.8
Income taxes - (o1) (1.4)
Net income from discontinued operations $— $0.2 $ 04

|

NOTE 20. VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB interpretation 46,
“Consolidatron of Vaniable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51" (FIN 46). in December 2003,
the FASB modified FIN 46 to make certain technical corrections and address certain implementation
1ssues that had ansen FIN 46 provides a new framework for identifying vanable mterest entities {VIEs)
and determining when a company should include the assets, liabilities, noncontrolling interests, and
results of operatians of a VIE in its consolidated financial statements

In general, a VIE 1s a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, trust, or any other legal
structure used to conduct activities or hold assets that either {1) has an insuffictent amount of equity to
carry out its principal activities without additional subordinated financial support, (2) has a group of
equity owners that are unable to make significant decisions about its activities, or (3) has a group of
equity owners that do not have the obligation to absorb tosses or the nght to recewve returns generated
by its operations.

FIN 46 requires a VIE to be consclidated if a party with an ownership, contractual ar ather financial
Interest in the VIE (a varnable interest holder) 1s obligated to absorb a majonity of the nisk of loss from
the VIE's activities, 15 entitled to receive a majonty of the VIE’s residual returns (if no party absorbs a
majonty of the VIE's losses), or both. A variable interest holder that consolidates the VIE ts called the
pnmary beneficiary Upon consolidation, the primary beneficiary generally must initrally record all of the
VIE's assets, habilities and noncontrolling interests at fair value and subsequently account for the VIE as
(f it were consolidated based on majonty voting interest FIN 46 alsa requires disclosures about VIES
that the vanable interest holder is not required to consolidate but in which it has a significant variable
interest

The Company’s Scotts LawnService® business sells new franchise territories, pnmarily in small to
mid-size markets, under arrangements where a portion of the franchise fee 1s pard in cash with the
balance due under a promissory note The Company believes that it may be the primary beneficiary for
certain of its franchisees initrally, but ceases to be the primary beneficiary as the franchisees develop
therr businesses and the promissory notes are repaid At September 30, 2006, the Company had
approximately $1 5 million in notes receivable from such franchisees The effect of consolidating the
entitres where the Company may be the pnmary beneficiary for a limtted period of time 1s not matenal to
aither the Consolidated Statements of QOperations or the Consolidated Balance Sheets

NOTE 21. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company 1s divided into the following segments — North Amenca, Scotts LawnSesvice®, Interna-
tronal, and Corporate & Other This division of reportable segments 1s consistent with how the segments
report to and are managed by senior management of the Company

The North America segment pnmanly consists of the Lawns, Gardens, Growing Media, Ortho®
(Controls), Canada and North American Professional business groups as well as the North American portion
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of the Roundup® commission This segment manufactures, markets and sells dry, granular slow-release
lawn fertilizers, combination lawn fertilizer and control products, grass seed, spreaders, water-soluble,
iquid and continuous-release garden and indoor plant foods, plant care products, potting, garden and
lawn soils, pottery, mulches and other growing media products, pestrcide products and a full ine of
horticulture products Products are marketed to mass merchandisers, home improvement centers, large
hardware chains, warehouse clubs, distributors, nursenes, garden centers and specialty crop growers in
the United States, Canada, Latin Amenca, South Amenica, Austraha, and Asia/Pacific.

The Scotts LawnService® segment provides lawn fertibzation, disease and insect control and other
related services such as core aeratian and tree and shrub fertilization primanly to residential consumers
through company-owned branches and franchises. In our larger branches, an externor barrier pest controt
service also Is offered.

The International segment provides products similar to those described above for the North America
segment to consumers primarily in Europe The Other/Corporate segment consists of the Smith &
Hawken® business and corporate general and admimistrative expenses.

The following table {(dollars in millions) presents segment financial information in accordance with
SFAS No 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” Pursuant to
SFAS No 131, the presentation of the segment financial information is consistent with the basis used by
management (i e, certain costs not allocated to business segments for internal management reporting
purposes are not allocated for purposes of this presentation)

2006 2005 2004
Net sales.
North America $ 1,914.5 $1,668 1 $1,569 0
Scotts LawnService® 205.7 159 8§ 135.2
Internattonal 408.5 4303 405 6
Corparate & Other 167.6 159.6 —
Segment total 2,6963 2,417.8 2,109 8
Roundup® deferred contribution charge - (457) -
Roundup® amortization 0.8 (28) (33
Operating income (loss)
North America $ 3820 $ 3439 $ 3064
Scotts LawnService® 15.6 131 94
Internattonal 28,5 343 29.3
Corporate & Other ___(81.8) __(942) X
Segment total 344.3 2971 274 2
Roundup® deferred contribution charge — {457 -
Roundup® amortization 0.8 (28) (3.3)
Amortization (16.8) (14 8) 83)
Impairment of intangibles (66.4) (23 4) -
Restructuring and other charges {9.4) (95) {9 8)
$ 2525 $ 2009 $ 2528
Depreciation & amortization
North America $ 307 $ 309 $ 249
Scotts LawnService® 3.8 39 39
International 13.1 115 126
Corporate & Other 19 4 209 16 3

$ 670 $ 672 $ w77
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2006 2005 2004
Capital expenditures
North America $ 248 $ 226 $ 214
Scotts LawnService® 30 21 15
Internattonal 114 35 92
Corporate & Other 17 8 12 2 30
$ s70 $ 404 $ 351
Long-lived assets
North America $ 7712 $ 7047
Scotts LawnService?® 120 3 116 8
International 235.0 262.4
Corporate & QOther 123 125.5
$1,250 4 $1,209.4
Total assets.
North America $1,3552 $1,219.3
Scotts LawnService® 161 6 146 7
International 450.9 463.1
Corporate & Qther 2499 189 8
$2,2176 $2,018 9

Segment operating income (loss) represents earnings before amortization of Intangible assets,
interest and taxes, since this is the measure of profitability used by management Accordingly, the
Corporate & Other operating loss includes unallocated corporate general and administrative expenses
and certain other income/expense not allocated to the business segments.

Long-lived assets reported for the Company’s operating segments include goodwill and intangible
assets as well as property, plant and equipment within each segment Total assets reported for the
Company's operating segments include the intangible assets for the acquired businesses within those
segments. Corporate & Other assets prnimarily include deferred financing and debt issuance costs,
corporate intangible assets as well as deferred tax assets and Smith & Hawken® assets

NOTE 22. SUBSEQUENT EVENT — RECAPITALIZATION

On December 12, 2006, 1t was announced that the Company intends to implement a recapitalization
plan that would expand upon and accelerate returns to shareholders beyond the current $500 million
share repurchase program (which has been canceled) by returning $750 million ta the Company’s
shareholders. Pursuant to this plan, which has been approved in concept by the Board of Directors, the
Company intends to launch a “Dutch auction” tender offer in January 2007 to repurchase up to
$250 million of the Company’s common shares. Following the consummation of the tender offer and
subject to finatl Board approval, the Company intends to declare a special one-time cash dividend dunng
the second quarter of fiscal 2007, cusrently anticipated to be $500 mullion in the aggregate but subject
to revision based on spending for tendered common shares

In connection with this recapitalization plan, a commitment letter has been recewed from JPMorgan
Chase, Bank of Amenca and Citrigroup, subject to the terms and conditions set farth therein, to provide
Scotts Miracle-Gro and certain of its subsidiaries the following loan facilities totaling in the aggregate up
to $2.1 billon (a) a semior secured five-year term loan 1n the principal amount of $550 o million and
(b) a senior secured five-year revolving loan facility in the aggregate pnncipal amount of up to
$1 55 billion. The Company will have the ability to increase the aggregate amount of the revolving and
term loan facilities by $200 million allocated on a pro rata hasis, subject to demand in the syndication
process The new $2 1 hillion senior secured credit facilities would replace the Company’s existing
$1 o5 billion senior credit facility descnbed in Note 9 In connection with the recapitalization plan,
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proceeds from the new credit facilities are also intended to be used to repurchase the 654% senior

subordinated notes due 2013 In an aggregate principal amount of $200 million.

NOTE 23. QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

The following 15 a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for fiscal 2006 and
fiscal 2005 (in millions, except per share data)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Full Year

FISCAL 2006
Net sales $2495 $9075 $1,0480 $4921 $2.6971
Gross profit 53.5 346.4 406.0 150.0 955.9
Income (loss) from continuing operations (52.7) 94.8 133.3 (2.7 1327
Incorne from discontinued operations - - - - -
Net income (loss) (52.7) 94 8 1333 427) 1327
Basic earnings (loss) per common share

Income (loss) from continuing operations % (0 78) $ 1.40 $ 197 $(0.64) $ 197

Income from discontinued operations - - - - —

Net income (loss) per common share $(0.78) $ 140 $ 197 $(0.64) $ 197
Common shares used in basic EPS

calculation 68.0 67.5 675 66 8 675
Diluted earmings (loss) per common share

Income (loss) from continuing operations  $ (0 78) $ 136 $ 192 $(0 64) $ 1901

Income from discontinued operations - — - - -

Net income (loss) per common share $ (0 78) $ 136 $ 192 $(0.64) $ 1901
Common shares and dilutive potenteal

common shares used in diluted EPS

calculation 680 69.6 69 4 66.8 69 4

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Full Year

FISCAL 2005
Net sales $246.5 $813 4 $9012 $408 2 $2,369.3
Gross profit 611 327.6 3338 1379 860 4
tncome (loss) from continuing operations (625) 833 881 (8.5) 100 4
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (0.2) (0.1} 04 0.1 02
Net income (loss) 627 832 B85 (8 4 100 6
Basic earnings (loss) per common share

income (loss) from continuing operations % (0 95) $ 1235 $ 132 $ (013 £ 151

Income from discontinued opera=t|0n5 - — 0 01 — —

Net income (loss) per common share $095) % 125 $ 133 $ (013} $ 151
Common shares used in basic EPS

calculation 66.0 66.6 670 67 4 66 8
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share

Income (loss) from continuing operations  $ (0 95) $ 1.22 $ 1.29 $ (013) $ 147

Income from discontinued operations — - - - -

Net income (loss) per common share $(0.95) $ 122 $ 1.29 $ (013) $ 147
Common shares and dilutive potential

commaon shares used in diluted EPS

calculation 660 682 68.6 67 4 686
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Common stock equivalents, such as stock awards, are excluded from the diluted loss per share
calculation in penods where there 15 a net loss because therr effect i1s anti-dilutive

The Company's business (s highly seasonal with 70% to 75% of net sales occurring in the second
and third fiscal quarters combined

Unusual items duning fiscal 2006 consisted of impairment charges, restructuning and other costs,
and an insurance recovery These items are reflected m the quarterly financial information as follows.
first quarter restructuning and other charges of $4 7 milllon and impairment of intangible assets of
$1 o miltion, second quarter restructuring and other charges of $1 1 million, third quarter restructuning
and other charges of $1 1 million, and fourth quarter restructuring and other charges of $2.5 mithion and
impairment of intangible assets of $65 4 million Also included in the first and second quarters are a
$1 0 million and $9 1 million benefit from an (nsurance recovery, respectively

Unusual charges dunng fiscal 2005 consisted of the charge to record the deferred contribution
amounts under the Roundup® marketing agreement, impairment charges and restructunng and other
costs. These charges are reflected in the quarterly financial information as follows, first quarter
restructuring and other charges of $o 2 million and impairment of intangible assets of $22.0 million;
second quarter restructunng and other charges of $0.1 million, third quarter deferred contribution charge
under the Roundup® marketing agreement of $45 7 million, and fourth quarter restructunng and other
charges of $8 2 million and impairment of intangible assets of $1.4 million. Also wcluded in the fourth
quarter 15 $3.6 million relating to an immatenal correction of pnor penods’ amortization expense.

NOTE 24. FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR SUBSIDIARY GUARANTORS AND NON-GUARANTORS

The 6% senior subordinated notes are general obligations of The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company and are
guaranteed by all of the existing wholly-owned, domestic subsidianes and all future wholly-owned, significant
(as defined in Regulation S-X of the Secunties and Exchange Commussion) domestic subsidianes of The Scotts
Miracle-Gro Company. These subsidiary guarantors jointly and severally guarantee the obligations of the
Company under the Notes. The guarantees represent full and uncenditional generat obligations of each
subsidiary that are subordinated in nght of payment to all existing and future senior debt of that subsidiary
but are serwor in nght of payment to any future junior subordinated debt of that subsidiary.

The following information presents consolidating Statements of Operations and Statements of Cash
Flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2006, and Balance Sheets as of
September 30, 2006 and 2005,
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The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
Consolidating Statement of Operations

for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006

Consolidated

Net sales
Cost of sales
Restructuring and other charges

Gross profit
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and
admnistrative

Impairment, restructunng, and
other charges

Equity income in subsidianes
Intercompany allocations
Other income, net

Income (loss) from operations
Interest expense
Income (loss) before income
taxes
Income taxes
Income (loss) from continuing
operations
Income from discontinued
operations

Net income (loss)

{in millions)
Subsidiary Non-
Parent Guarantors  Guarantors  Eliminations

$ —  $21847 $512 4
- 1,400 6 3405

— — 01

— 7841 171 8

- 504.2 132.7

- 28 4 47.3

(146 0) - -
— (21.2) 21.2

- (z6) (16)

146 0 2803 (27.8)
133 11.8 145
1327 268.5 (42 3)
- 67.4 12.8
132.7 2011 (55 1)

$ 132.7 $ 2011 $G51)

a7

146 ©

(146 0)

(146 0)

(146 0)

$2,6971

1,741.1
0.1

9559

636 9

757

(9.2)
2525
39.6

212.9
8o 2

1327

$ 1327




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006

(in millions)
Subsidiary Non-
Parent  Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations  Consoiidated
QOPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) $ 1327 $ 2011 $ (551) ${(146 0) $1327
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities
Impairment of intangible assets - 242 422 - 66 4
Stock-based compensation expense — 157 - — 157
Depreciation - 44 0 70 - 510
Amortizatien - g5 65 - 16 0
Deferred taxes - 11 (15} - (0.4)
Equity income 1n subsidianes (146 0) - - 146 © -
Gain on sale of property, plant and
equipment - (09 - - (c.5)
Changes n assets and habilities, net of
acquired businesses
Accounts receivable - 367 {o9) - (376)
Inventories — (58 8) (18) - (60 6)
Prepaid and other current assets - 33 (03) - (3 6)
Accounts payable - 329 14 — 343
Accrued taxes and habilities 01 (30.3) 32) - (334
Restructuning reserves - (10 Q) a8 - (g 2)
Other non-current items - 20 - - 20
Other, net 03 17 76 - 96
Net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities (12 9) 192 6 27 — 182 4
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant
and equipment - 13 — — 13
Investment In property, plant and
equipment — {44 6) {12 ) - (57 0)
investments in acquired businesses, net of
cash acquired (97 8) (20 6} - — (118 4)
Net cash used in investing activities (97 8) (639) (12 4) - {174 1)
AINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings under revolving and bank lines
of credit - 417 8 3291 - 7469
Repayments under revolving and bank lines
of credit - {4217) (270 0} - 6917}
Dividends paid (339 - - - (335)
Payments on seller notes — (45) — - (4 5)
Purchase of common shares {879} - — - (879)
Excess tax benefits from share-based
payment arrangements - 62 — - 62
Cash recewved from exercise of stock
ophions = 176 - — - 176
Intercompany financing 2145 (157 6) (56 9) — —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing
activities 1107 (159 B) 22 — (46 9}
Effect of exchange rate changes — {12 77 — 65
Net increase (decrease) in cash - (323) 02 - (321}
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year — 425 377 — 802
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ - $ 102 $ 379 $ - $ 481




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
Consolidating Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2006
(in millions)

Subsidiary Mon-
Parent Guarantors  Guarantors Eliminations  Consolidated
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ - % 1102 $ 379 $ - $ 484
Accounts receivable, net - 2029 87¢ - 380 4
Inventores, net — 310.1 991 — 409 2
Prepaid and other assets - 841 202 = 1043
Total current assets - 697.3 2447 - 942.0
Property, plant and equipment,
net - 317.8 49 8 - 367.6
Goodwill - 333 4 1247 - 4581
Intangible assets, net - 343 6 811 - 424.7
Other assets 88 14 8 16 - 25.2
Investment in affiliates 973 8 - - {973.8) -
Intracompany assets 299.2 — — {299.2) -
Total assets $1,2818 $1,706 ¢ $ 5019 $(1,273 0) $2,2176
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current iabilities
Current portion of debt $ - % 31 $ 29 $ - $ 60
Accounts payable - 155 2 45 2 - 200.4
Accrued liabilities o1 172 8 96 2 - 269 1
Accrued taxes - 18 5 22 - 20.7
Total current habtlities 01 349 6 146 5 - 496 2
Long-term debt 200.0 209 2543 - 475.2
Other hiabilities — 133.7 30.8 - 164 5
Intracompany liabilities — 59 4 239 8 (299 2) —
Total habilibes 2001 563 6 671 4 (299 2) 1,135 9
Shareholders’ equity 1,081 7 1,143.3 (169.5) (973 8) 1,081.7
Total habilities and shareholders’
equity $1,281 8 $1,706 9 $ 501.9 $(1,273 0) $2,2176
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
Consolidating Statement of Operations

for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005

(in millions)
Subsidiary Non-
Parent  Guarantors Guarantors  Ehminations  Consolidated

Net sales $ —  $1,8508 $518 5 $ - $2,369 3
Cost of sales -— 1,172.9 3363 — 1,509 2
Restructuring and other charges — (o 4 01 — (03)
Gross profit — 678.3 1821 - 860 4
Operating expenses

Selling, general and

administrative — 494.1 1397 - 633 8
Impairment, restructunng and
other charges — 8.0 252 - 332

Equity income 1n subsidiaries (117 8) — - 117 8 -
Intercompany allocations — (23.5) 23.5 — -
Other income, net - (o 6) 21 - (7s)
income from operations 117 8 209.3 (8 4) (117.8) 200.9
Costs related to refinancings 13 - — - 13
interest expense 15 9 16.5 9.1 — 41.5
Income (loss) before income taxes 100.6 192.8 (175) {117 8) 168 1
Income taxes (benefit) — 64 1 (6 4) - 57.7
Income (loss) from cantinuing

operations 100.6 1287 (11.1) (117 8) 100.4
Income from discontinued

operations — 02 — - a2
Net income (loss) $100 6 $ 1289 $ (111) $(1178) $ 100.6
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005
{in millions)

Subsidiary Non-
Parent Guarantors  Guarantors Eliminations  Consolidated

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) $ 1006 $ 1289 $ (111) $(1178) $ 1006
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used i)
operating activities

Impairment of intangible assets —_ - 23 4 - 234
Costs related to refinancings 13 - - - 13
Stock-based compensation expense - 107 - - 107
Depreciation - 427 69 - 49 6
Amortization - o8 78 - 176
Deferred taxes - (13 6) — - (13.6)
Equity income in subsidianes (117 8) — - 117 8 -
Changes 1n assets and liabilities, net of
acquired businesses
Accounts recetvable - (29 4) (8 s) - (379
Inventones — (21.0) 52 - (15 8)
Prepaid and other current assets - (02) 83 - 81
Accounts payable — 19 3 (5 0) — 10 3
Accrued taxes and hiabilities — 281 (02) - 279
Restructunng reserves — 11 4 (1.2) - 10 3
Other non-current items - 5.9 o7 - 66
Other, net - 323 (47 — 276
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
actvities (15 9) 2249 177 — 2267
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Redemption of available for sale securities - 572 - — 57 2
investment in praperty, plant and
equipment - (36 9) Gs) - (40 &)
investments in acquired businesses, net of
cash acquired - 777 - — (77 7)
Net cash used n investing activities — (574) (35) — {60 9)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings under revolving and bank lines
of credit — 1743 7499 - 924 2
Repayments under revolving and bank lines
of credit — (169 4) (567 0) — (736 4)
Repayment of term loans (399 0) — — — (399 ©)
Financing and 1ssuance fees (36) - — - (36
Dividends paid (8 6) - - - (8 6)
Payments on seller notes - (6 9} - - (69)
Proceeds from termination of interest rate
swaps 29 - — - 29
Cash received from exercise of stock
options — 322 — - 322
Intercompany financing . 424 2 (238 9) (185 3) — -
Net cash (used in) provided by financing
activities 15 9 (z087) (2 4) — {195 2)
Effect of exchange rate changes — — (6 0) — (6 o)
Net increase (decrease} in cash - {412) 58 - (35 4)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year — 837 319 — 115 6

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ — $ 425 $ 377 $ - $ 802
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
Consolidating Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2005
(in millions)

Subsidiary Non-
Parent Guarantors  Guarantors  Eliminations  Consolidated

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ $ 425 $ 377 $ - $ 8oz
Accounts receivable, net 240 3 B3o - 323.3
Inventories, net 2325 92.4 — 3249
Prepaid and other assets 401 19 3 — 59 4
Total current assets 555 4 232 4 — 7878
Property, plant and equipment,
net 2947 423 - 3370
Goodwill 314.9 118.0 - 432.9
Intangible assets, net 315 4 1241 — 4395
Other assets 106 10.8 073 - 21.7
Investment in affiliates 1,660 5 — — (1,660 5) -
Intracompany assets —~ 606 9 - {606 9) -
Total assets $1,6711  $2,0981 $ 5171 $ (2,2674) $2.0189

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current ltabilities:

Current portion of debt $ $ 4.1 $ 70 $ - $ 111
Accounts payable 110 2 415 — 1517
Accrued hiabtlities 2225 922 - 314.7
Accrued taxes 52 35 - 87
Total current iablities 342.0 144 2 - 486 2
Long-term debt 2000 161 166.3 - 382 4
Other hiabilities 102.2 219 — 124.1
Intracompany liabilities 444 9 — 162.0 (606.9) —
Total Labilities 644.9 460.3 494 4 (606.9) 992.7
Shareholders’ equity 1,026.2 1,637 8 22.7 {1,660 5) 1,026 2

Total habilities and shareholders’
equity $1,6711  $2,0081 $ 5171 $(2,267 49) $2,018.9
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
Consolidating Statement of Operations

for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004

(in millions)

Subsidiary Non-
Parent Guarantors  Guarantors Elminations  Consolidated

Net sales $1,087 4 $544.2 $474.9 $ - $2,106 5
Cost of sales 6840 328 6 300 9 — 1,313 5
Restructuring and other charges 0.2 — 0.4 — 06
Gross profit 403.2 215.6 173.6 — 792 4
Operating expenses

Selling, general and

administrative 345.6 53.6 1415 - 540 7
Impairment, restructuring and
other charges 4.1 0.2 4.8 - g1

Equity sncome In subsidianes (107.2) — — 107 2 —
Intercompany allocations (277} 67 210 - -
Other income, net (19) (4 5) (3 8) — (10 2)
Income from operations 190.3 159.6 101 (107.2) 262 8
Costs related to refinancings 45.5 - - - 455
Interest expense (iIncome) 52.1 (13.1) 98 — 48 8
Income before Income taxes 927 1727 0.3 {107 2) 158 5
Income taxes (benefit) (8.2) 66 1 0.1 - 58 0
Income from continuing

operations 100.9 106 6 02 (107 2) 1005
income from discontinued

operations, net of tax — 0.4 — — 0.4
Net income $ 100.9 $ 107.0 $ o2 $(1072) $ 1009
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The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company
Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004
{in millions)

Subsidiary Non-
Parent Guarantors  Guarantors  Elminations  Consolidated
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 1009 %1070 $ o2 $(1072) % 1009
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by (used n} operating
activities
Costs related to refinancings 455 - - - 455
Stock-based compensation expense 78 - - - 78
Depreciation 26 4 1173 84 - 461
Amortization 04 70 42 - 116
Deferred taxes 176 - - - 176
Equity income in subsidianes (107 2) - - 1072 -
Changes 1n assets and hiabilities, net of
acquired businesses
Accounts receivable 146 {20 2) 37 - {19)
Inventones 109 72 (a7 7 - (14 0)
Prepaid and other current assets 3 (z 2) (11 4) — {16 9)
Accounts payable 8 4) {107 04 - (18 7)
Accrued taxes and liabilities 252 28 15 - 29.5
Restructuning reserves 06 {os) 07 - 08
Other non-current items (o1 14 19 - 58
Other, net 66 32 19 — o uz
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities 128 5 919 (6 2) — 214 2
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in availabie for sale secunties (121 4) - —_ — {121 4)
Redemption of available for sale secunties 64 2 — - -~ 64 2
Payment on seller notes (o) (10 3) — - (12 3)
Investment Iin property, plant and
equipment, net (107) (15 2) (9 2) — (35.1)
Investments in acquired businesses, net of
cash acquired (03) 47 (32) - (82
Net cash used in investing activities (7o 2) (30 2) (12 ) — (112 B)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings under revolving and bank lines
of credit - — 648 6 - 648.6
Repayments under revolving and bank lines
of credit — - (646 6) - (646 6)
Repayment of term loans (8275) — - — (8275%)
Proceeds from i1ssuance of term loans 900.0 - - — 900 0
Redemption of 8%4% Senior Subordinated
Notes (418 o) - — — (418 ©)
Proceeds from 1ssuance of 6% Senior
Subordinated Notes 2000 - - - 200.0
Financing and 1ssuance fees (130) - - - (13 0)
Cash received from exercise of stock
options 235 - — - 235
Intercompany financing . 270 (61 6) 34 6 — —
Net cash provided by (used in) finanting
activities (108 0) (61 6) 36 6 - (133 0)
Effect of exchange rate changes — — 87) — (87
Net increase (decrease) in cash (49 7) 01 93 {403}
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1321 12 226 - 1559
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 824 $ 13 $ 319 $ — $ 156
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ADDITIONAL ACCOUNTING MATTERS

As previously reported in the Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed by The Scotts Company, the public
company predecessor to The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company, on December 17, 2004, at a meeting held on
December 2, 2004, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of The Scotts Company dismissed
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm and
approved the engagement of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company’s independent registered public
accounting firm Deloitte & Touche LLP accepted the engagement as the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm effective as of December 17, 2004

As of the date of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP's dismissal as the Company’'s independent registered
public accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and the Company had an open consultation
regarding the appropriate accounting treatment for an approximately $3 0 million habity resulting from
a bonus pool related to an acquisition made during the first quarter of the Company’s 2005 fiscal year
At the time of their dismissal, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP did not have sufficient information to reach a
conclusion on the appropnate accounting for this matter Since this matter was not resolved prior to
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP's dismissal, this matter was considered a reportable event under
Item 304(a){(1)(v) (D) of SEC Regulation 5-K.

Based on a thorough review of the facts and circumstances, and relevant accounting literature
regarding this matter, the Company determined that this hability should be recorded on the opening
balance sheet of Smith & Hawken® This hiability was based on an incentive agreement between the
prior owners of Smith & Hawken® and their employees, whereby a portian of the purchase price was to
be paid to the employees upon the sale of the business No post-sale service was required in order for
the employees to earn this bonus; therefore, this was considered a liability assumed by the Company as
of the purchase date and not an expense related to post-acquisition service

GOVERNANCE DOCUMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of Section 303A.10 of the New York Stock Exchange's Listed
Company Manual, the Board of Directors of the Registrant has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics covering the members of the Registrant’s Board of Directors and associates (employees) of the
Registrant and its subsidianes, including, without imitation, the Registrant’s principal executive officer,
principal financial officer and principal accounting officer The Registrant intends to disclose the
foltowing on its Internet website located at http //investor scotts com within four business days following
their occurrence (A) the date and nature of any amendment to a provision of its Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics that (1) applies to the Registrant's principal executive officer, prinaipal financial
officer, pnincipal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions, {u) relates to
any element of the code of ethics definitton enumerated in ltem 406(b) of SEC Regulation S-K, and (i) 1s
not a technical, administrative or other non-substantive amendment, and (B) a description {including the
nature of the warver, the name of the person to whom the waiver was granted and the date of the
waiver) of any waiver, including an implicit waiver, from a provision of the Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics to the Registrant’s pnncipal executwe officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting
officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions, that relates to one or more of the elements
of the code of ethics definition set forth in Item 406(b) of SEC Regulation S-K

The text of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, the Registrant’s Corporate Governance
Guidelines, the Audit Commuttee charter, the Governance and Nominating Commuittee charter, the
Compensation and Organization Committee charter and the Innovation & Technology Committee charter
are posted under the “governance” link on the Registrant’s Intermet website located at
http //investor scotts com Interested persons may also obtain copies of each of these documents
without charge by writing to The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company, Attention: Corporate Secretary, 14111
Scottslawn Read, Marysville, Ohio 43041




